
PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION AGENDA
Monday, February 24, 2020 - 6:00 PM

City Hall, Conference Room A, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport , OR 97365

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for
the DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING, or for other accommodations for persons with
disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City
Recorder at 541.574.0613.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

2.A Update on City Council Direct ion to Init iate Targeted Nye Beach Code
Amendments. 

3. NEW BUSINESS

3.A Review Updated Set of  Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone Amendments / Hazard
Mit igat ion Plan. 
Memorandum
Draft Amendments to Natural Features Section of the Comprehensive Plan
Draft Amendments Establishing a Tsunami Hazard Overlay - NMC Chpt 14.46
Minutes from the 08-26-19 PC Work Session
Res. No. 3725 & Earthquake Maps

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538097/Memo_-_Tsunami_Hazards.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538098/Draft_Amendments_to_Natural_Features_Section_of_the_Comprehensive_Plan.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538896/Draft_Amendments_Establishing_a_Tsunami_Hazard_Overlay.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538099/Minutes_from_the_08-26-19_Planning_Commission_Work_Session.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538100/Res._No._3725_and_Earthquake_Maps.pdf


Draft Maps Illustrating DOGAMI’s Tsunami Inundation Areas-TIM Maps
Uses Classified as High Hazard-Group H in the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code
HB 4119A Staff Measure Summary & Draft Legislation
Chapter 3 - DLCD Publication

3.B Review Amendments to the Stormwater Facilit ies Element of  the
Comprehensive Plan. 
Memorandum
Draft Stormwater Element of the Newport Comp Plan 02-24-20
03-12-18 PC Work Session Minutes

4. ADJOURNMENT

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538101/Draft_Maps_Illustrating_DOGAMI_s_Tsunami_Inundation_Areas-TIM_Maps.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538102/Uses_Classified_as_High_Hazard_-Group_H-_in_the_2019_Oregon_Structural_Specialty_Code.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538103/HB_4119A_Staff_Measure_Summary_and_Draft_Legislation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538104/Chapter_3_-_DLCD_Publication.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/538095/Memo_-_Storm_Drainage.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/537025/Draft_Stormwater_Element_of_the_Newport_Comp_Plan_02-24-20.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/537026/03-12-18_PC_Work_Session_Minutes.pdf


City of Newport

Memorandum

Community Development
Department

To: Planning Commission/Commission Advisory Committee -

From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Directo)\

Re: Tsunami Hazards Comprehensive Plan Policies and Overlay Zone

Attached is a draft copy of amendments to the Natural Features Section of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan that includes a rationale, background, and policies for guiding development
within tsunami inundation areas. Additionally, a draft ordinance establishing a Tsunami Hazards
Overlay Zone has been prepared for your review. The overlay expressly limits certain uses in
tsunami inundation areas in a manner comparable to provisions contained in ORS Chapter 455
that were removed with the passage of HB 3309 (2019).

These documents build upon materials presented to the Planning Commission at work sessions
on August 1 2th and August 26th of 2019. Minutes from the last work session are enclosed.
Additionally, supporting materials referenced in the drafts are included as background.

HB 4119 is likely to be approved during the Oregon Legislature’s short session. A copy of the bill
and legislative summary are included with the packet. It is a refinement of HB 3309 that will require
certain structures in tsunami inundation areas be designed to higher standards. The City will
update its building codes to comply with the law if it is passed. It will not impact the proposed
amendments, but would be a supplemental set of standards that would apply to certain projects.

Please review the draft amendments. If the Planning Commission is comfortable with the
revisions, then staff will initiate the required 35-day DLCD notice prior to the first evidentiary
hearing. A motion will be needed from the Commission to formally initiate the legislative process.
That can happen at the next regular meeting scheduled for March 9, 2020.

Attachments
• Draft Amendments to Natural Features Section of the Comprehensive Plan
• Draft Amendments Establishing a Tsunami Hazard Overlay (new NMC Chapter 14.46)
• Minutes from the August 26, 2019 Planning Commission Work Session
• Res. No. 3725 and Earthquake Maps from the Newport Addendum to the Lincoln County Hazard Mitigation Plan
• Draft Maps Illustrating DOGAMI’s Tsunami Inundation Areas (TIM Maps)
• Uses Classified as High Hazard (Group H) in the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code
• HE 41 19A Staff Measure Summary and Draft Legislation
• Chapter 3, DLCD Publication Titled “Preparing for a Cascadia Subduction Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon

Coastal Communities

Date: February 20, 2020

3



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

(Deleted language shown in strikethrouh and language to be added is depicted with a
double underline. Staff comments, in italics, are provided for context and are not a part
of the revisions)

NATURAL FEATURES

Various sections of Newport’s Comprehensive Pd a ticipated a demand for
additional land to accommodate growth. Sometimqt t gro croaches into areas
that are environmentally sensitive or geologichzardous. fortunately, not all
developers or other users of the land are awaçt several environmehal factors exist
restricting the development potential of muct land in the Newport Many areas
have limitations for development, so speciIbare mustiti.b taken prior t6 and during
construction, If care is not taken in those area: icial and property losses and
possible loss of life may occur.

ii unto itself and should
lints. But there are

ct those features,

rious environmental issues that face the
hazardous lands will be identified and
rhere not known, procedures must be

Introduction:

The Newport area is predominantly composed of five geologic units: the Nye
mudstone, the Astoria formation, the Yaquina formation, the Cape Foulweather basalt, and
the Quaternary marine deposits. A bulletin describing the characteristics of the five
units and mapping the general location of each is the Environmental Geology of Lincoln

be a
also
care

The prevention of loss of pi
major consideration when identifyil
properties that are the site
must also be taken in

This sectioi
City of Newport.
policies will be de
establishecitoicentify

GeoLoqr

Wind and
and rivers fIatt
the process ovei

of an area dictates the land forms created by erosive forces.
into hills and valleys, wave action builds beaches, streams

and the earth’s internal forces push the land upward to start

People, too, shape the land to serve their needs. Houses and shopping centers are
built, roads are cut, land is cleared, all to facilitate the needs and desires of a greater
number of people. But how do all these forces interact and how do we avoid situations that
are in conflict? To answer these questions, we must first examine the underlying geology
and then identify inherent problems created because of that geology.

Page 1. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

4



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

County, Oregon, prepared by the State of Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral
Industries.1 The map of the Newport area also shows a geologic cross section that bisects
the heart of Newport.

The Environmental Geology bulletin contains an appendix that summarizes planning
concerns in the Newport area:

“Coastal erosion and landslides are extensive from Otter Rock southward to
Yaquina Head. Here the abundance of landslides is due to thep seaward dip of the
underlying bedrock. Problems are especially apparent wh ‘ighway fills have been
placed across canyons or small valleys. Repairs are annually in these areas.
Sliding extends east of the highway, and in some areaJJr lines require frequent
repair and realignment. r’

“There are large landslides on both the nç4nd south sides’ biina Head. The
landslide on the south side has made seI5uiIdings unusable. ‘4jRjjgate Beach,
subsurface drainage is restricted and a is ne,ary before
additional developments are made.

“In the vicinity of Jumpoff JoJ,jn Newport, sea coast has retreated as much
as several hundred feet since the 1btae centu . umber of homes have been
destroyed or badly damaged in ‘ a result of landslides in this
area. Before any additional shoreline are , tability of the slope should
be studied by soil engi5ers and geoI%ts ejllparentiy stable slope can be
reactivated by the adJjn of hoqies and’•s.

“From Ny& 1fh southw. to YaquinaBay the shoreline is being eroded by storm
waves. People coiç;,ing j stwcturê€on these cliffs should be aware that the
cliffs are erotg1 back abi “foot per year, and erosion could be much more severe if
landslidf.’JThe pr1, ,è of placing embankments over steep vegetated slopes is

vegetation will decompose to produce a slip plain at the
inte4 between the1 anIPf1t and the original ground.

llEIHtt
pf the shorej in Newport from about Nye Beach south to the bay, the

marine ter are overlaiii by loose dune sand. These sands are stabilized where
covered by vtion; jj1jwever, where the vegetation has been removed or none has
grown, the sand iW5to erosion or transport by wind. Frequently during high winds,
the sand can be obJd drifting across streets and into properties adjacent to the street.

1
State of Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Bulletin 81: Environmental Geology of Lincoln County, Oregon, 1973.

Page 2. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

5



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

“Just east of Newport, in the vicinity of McClean McLean [sic] Point, much of the
slope has been affected by landslides. Development in this area should proceed with great
caution. The making of steep cuts, removal of toe support, the additional weight of
embankments on the upper slopes, and the addition of moisture from the developments,
including subsurface sewage disposal, all add to the instability of the slope. Serious
problems can arise, especially following periods of extremely heavy rainfall. Developments
in this area could suffer serious slope problems unless the slopes and embankments are
properly constructed and a public sewerage system is insta

“The area south of Yaquina Bay from Highway
Henderson Creek is subject to a seasonal high watert
greater density, a public sewerage system should b
problems for foundations of structures, and in
surface after a heavy rainfall.”2

The geologic and climatic environm
hazards that have the potential for creating sel
other hand, an understanding of these COfl&ci

them in the planning stages of de1ment can
otherwise occur

In order for planning and development tofGIWrd irttsuch a way as to lessen the
damage brought on byJ condition the data and suggestions in this section are
introduced as NeitL’Local sites’shall be evaluated by qualified
geologists in ordeJrotect thdlii1dividuaidànd owners, investors, and developers from
problem areas in ort that jêplogic hazards. The geologists shall also
make suggestions be avoided or corrected.

istward as far south as
.development reaches a

water table creates
“j will stand at the

“Nport : nded by a ‘ ,y of natural
i involving proprty. On the

ia sensible approach to coping with
ite much of the grief that might

Mai

is Subiect tà”Geolociic Hazards

platforms,
interrupted

sea cliffs in some pl

Newport is situated on a marine terrace. These elevated
r strand- lines of the sea, extend the full length of the city,
s and the Yaquina Bay. The terrace materials consist of

and pebbly sand overlain in many areas by old, fairly stable
the terrace and dune sediments tilts seaward and is exposed in

2
pgs. 168-169.

Page 3. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

6



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

‘The margins of these terrace areas adjacent to the ocean are attractive places to
build, and many small beach cottages, permanent homes, condominiums, and motels
occupy these locations. Unfortunately, the sea cliffs at the terrace margins are slowly but
continually receding. Wave erosion during storms and high tides undermines the cliffs,
while rain, wind, and frost loosen the upper portions; as a result, masses of terrace material
slip seaward at unpredictable rates and in unexpected places.

“In general, marine terrace margins can be expected toeat from 6 inches to I
foot per year; however, in certain areas, recession can averare than 10 feet per year.
In some locations, erosion may not be evident for a deca d then 10 or 15 feet of the

cliff may drop off in a single season. Occasionally, vers involving a number of
acres of land may slide seaward, such as in the Ju[sic]1rea of Newport.

“Excessive slippage along terrace ma due to the of weakened,
water-saturated bedrock along its seawardtildding planes. Of coi1he overlying
terrace sediments move with it. Particularly &!rabIe to lptding-pIane fIjj is the Nye
Mudstone. This type of movement may have v’l aq jJ1frzontai componnts of only 2
feet to as much as 50 feet. At first the surface of jjjit1 block is not disrupted, but it is
generally back-tilted, or rotated down,on the landwa’e. Water often accumulates in a
sag pond at the back of the slide.

I

__________________________

“The surface of these slump ars may rjp1om &to 100 feet wide and from
200 to 1,000 feet long11. To tIe untraihd suh4Ijarently level areas of ocean
frontage might appeqf!be des1abIe buiI tes. Unfdrtünately, however, these areas
are extremely unsj since the ground su’rce must adjust to constant wave erosion at
the toe of the slidlllll,n a short time. the entihlump block can be eroded away. During
the limited life of the vill be plagued with continual problems of
settlement, and windows, and water- and sewer-line
difficulti

In cei south Beach and Nye Beach, large old sand dunes have
develope and have remained stable for many years. “However, the
need for easi material and the preparation of ground for building sites has
led to the rem ibilizing soil layer and has exposed loose sand. If these
exposed areas are inmediateIy stabilized, the wind will soon erode basins and troughs,
causing the sand to Thigrate to adjacent housing areas where it can cover driveways,
sidewalks, streets, and lawns.”4

u, p. 127.

d, p. 132.

Page 4. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

7



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Sandspits and Active Dunes

“Sandspits and their active dunes are of recent origin and should be regarded as
relatively temporary features. Some parts of the spits and dunes are built up quickly by
water and wind and destroyed by the same agents a few years later. Their instability
results from the interplay of numerous environmental factors, including ocean currents, size
and number of storms, volume of stream sediment entering the ocean, and variations in
tides and wind patterns.”5

I I

Sandspits and active dunes are found mostly at th ith of Yaquina Bay and in
South Beach. “Preservation of vegetation on the ,:,uth of Yaquina Bay is
recommended since excavation into loose sand coulçl in1llte futhç dune migration... .lt is
essential that the foredune be preserved. Conslliwiction in thi:ne area could be
hazardous “6

Hillside Development Areas

ld, p. 132.

6
d, p. 132.

ideabIe adverse effect on slope
a side hill, it results in a steeper than

is usually placed immediately downslope to
en. Both operations create instability by

Properties with a slope greater than 12%.

8

“Nearly all aspects of hillside land develoóbibine to create slope instability
unless the entire construction proj . It should be emphasized that
slope failure may occur 5 [sicJ to 10 of the development, by which
time the developer may have divest responsibility

“Development a’
stability. Whenever
natural slope. M
provide a nearly
oversteepening anl

d ri
total
septic-

area.”8

deveIopmêts progress gradually... .By the time the
half of the ground surface is covered by buildings, streets,

preventing normal infiltration of precipitation Not only will the
ted in small areas but additional water will build up from

ains, and lawn sprinkling, causing possible oversaturation of
1 slope failure involving large sections of the total hillside

State of Oregon, Bulletin 81: Environmental Geology of Lincoln County, Oregon, p. 135.

Page 5. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

8



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Inland Mountainous Areas

“Construction inland from the coast.. .usually involves steep topography along the
valleys of the major rivers and smaller streams. (Flood-plain development and its
associated hazards are discussed under ‘Flood-prone Areas,’ below.) Since the early days
of settlement.. .these valleys have provided the best access inland from the ocean. As a
result, farms, small towns, roads, and highways have followed them. Logging roads have
penetrated far into the mountainous areas along the steep wQf the smaller tributary
streams, and some of these roads have come into perman.

IId, p. 135.

“The valleys were excavated by streams to great depth ing the ice ages of the
Pleistocene when sea levels were considerably IQWE.d. of the ice during
interglacial episodes caused a rise in sea level an:dual drownijjid silting up of the
lower reaches of the valleys. Meandering stjØs now impinge ‘je steep walls,
removing support of the weathered rock arllMI mantle, causing ndjdslides and
renewed movement of old slide masses. M1ade cuts fcoad constru, basement
excavations, and other purposes have the sai potentially unst’ble soil and
rock.”9

Summary

The Newport area has many p1
grows, those areas are ,eing encroaci
those areas with thetfrst
development and, ttiMfore, co

The different geol
general se
areas ai
shoul
cot
hazai

logic hazards. As the city
tore. Another conflict is that

are alsÔ’the areas most desirable for
hest prices.

tlems that cannot be summarized in a
necessary to generally identify hazardous

:udies prior’t&tievelopment. All possible geologic hazards
ry solutions determined prior to any construction. If
,e project should be abandoned. To ignore a geologic

‘S

surface as earthquakes. In some places, such as the San And reas Fault in California, the
fault producing the earthquake can be mapped at the surface, but usually the fault is buried

Page 6. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

9



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

“These studies also indicate that distant e.
southwest Oregon coast, could produce intei
during earthquakes, from nearby
can affect not only buildings, bridç
subsidence and landslides. Granu
sand and gravel, will consolidate ar)
Because subsidence i ‘ uneve
destroyed. L
conditions (such
vibrations could
lowlands soils coL....

in the Gorda’ asin off the
ion VI and VII. Ground motion

as well as distant earthquakes,
areas of potcntial land

ctions of loose, saturated
shaking ground motion

ground may be tipped or
slopes and saturated ground

ng winter and spring months), earthquake
addition, fluid response in saturated

flow; even on gentle slopes.”

Page 7. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

(concealed) and cannot be observed at the surface. In Lincoln County, faults are
numerous in the bedrock units. Snavely and others (1972 a, b, c) indicate a complex
system of northwest- and northeast-trending normal faults, some of which have large
vertical displacements. The age of faulting is not well established, but the youngest
bedrock unit involved is late Miocene (15 m.y. [million years]). No faulting is present in the
marine terrace deposits of late Pliocene to early Pleistocene, indicating that fault
movement is at least older than 0.5 m.y. Although faulting is extensive in the County, no
master earthquake-producing fault system is indicated.

“Earthquake summaries by Berg and Baker (
provide historical earthquake data for Lincoln County. ‘

seismic history extends back only some 70 years to.
seven earthquakes were reported: four at L...
of IV; one at WaId port, intensity rating IV; one
Afrc, intensity rating llI...”° (See Thhl1—-”

‘inh nd I nwcrlI (1971)

-- :,intensity
34.)

i that the recorded
.During this period,
Modified Mercalli)

“Ill; and one at

of Lin
massive

44
10



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Table I
City of Newport

VL‘ 1 n’l+ I ,-1-”,+;fI-l I r+r c’ , rv’ ‘, rI,c

1897 Jan.26 Newport IV

1902 June 14 Newport IV

•
“‘ V1.,,’

I 1.1 Id Id Id .J1. 1 IN iW j_i I] I I I Id IL I Id I I LA l.A I 1.4 Sd Id I I Id

miles

1940 May 25 W o IV jlt at Toledo and
Depoe Bay; IlL

all objects moved a ldport.
1941 Oct. 19 eat Rock Ill
1957 Mar.22 ea II

The Pacific Northwest experienced ubduction z . rthquake estimated at magnitude
9 on January 26, 1700. The earthq erated a mi that caused damage as far
away as Japan. Cascadia subducti o hquake U associated tsunamis have

years. The geologic r testhr the lastT.000 years approximately 42
tsunamis have bee: rate he Ore Coast in connection to ruptures of the CSZ
(19 of the events full-margi. ptures arrived approximately 1 5-20 minutes after
the earthquake).1

Earthquak d da re difficaT,predict. and depend on the size, type. and
locatio ua welt as site-specific building and soil characteristics.
Pres it is not p e to

!
ratety forecast the location or size of earthquakes, but it

is p leto predict th havi soil at any particular site. In many major earthquakes.
dama ave primaril en ca ed by the behavior of the soil. The Department of
Geology Mineral md ies (DOGAMI) has developed maps for the City of Newport
that show of high k (relative to other areas) during p damaging earthquake.
Specifically. th s y relative amplification hazards. relative liquefaction hazards,
areas subject to

_____

e-induced landslides, and hazards attributed to the combined
effects of around s1Lng. The mans are referenced as Figures NA-4 lo NA-7 in the
Newport Addendum to the Lincoln County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan, dated July2015.

Newport’s concentrated population and resources. as well as the soil characteristics and
relative earthquake hazards. as depicted on the referenced maps, are cause for further
study and significant effort toward mitigating the earthquake hazards, including seismically
upgrading essential facilities and ensuring new development adheres to modern,
earthquake---resistant building codes.

1fl1t I’,r IA

I O’)Q Q-1+ A ,-c i n

occurred on average every 500 yearsfrt lt3..,.5OO‘j in the Pacific Northwest.
The time between eventb been ahort as 100 to 200’!?ears and as lona as 1000

10 Oregon Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan. Department of Land Conservation and Development, 2015.

Page 8. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

11



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Tsunami’s:

The Oregon coast is well known for its spectacular scenery and natural resources.
However, because the coast lies at the interface between land and the Pacific Ocean, it
also is a zone of great instability and vulnerability. Over time, we have gained a greater
awareness of our coast’s geologic hazards and its risks to people and property.

Coastal Oregon is not only vulnerable to chronic coastal hazards such as coast erosion
from winter storms and sea level rise, but it is also subject to )otentially catastrophic
effects of a Cascadia earthquake event and related tsunami.’

__________________

devastating earthquakes of magnitude 9+ are generated

__________________

(CSZ) where the eastward-moving Juan de Fuca tector
moving North American plate just off the C

_____

under the ocean just offshore of our coast and will

___________ _____________

that can strike the coast 15 and 20 minutes

____________ _____________

their path. It is likely that in most Oregon r”

_________________
___________

name], the only warning of an approaching 1

_______________

The geologic record shows that the largesf ojjhQse ‘arge CSZ earthquakes and
accompanying tsunamis occur abovery 500 years,. ptüs or minus 200 years. The last
such earthquake and tsunami occ er 300 yèers go, on the evening of January
26th, 1700. This means that we i.. time win where a destructive CSZ
earthquake and tsunami could occur the’4Hty o occurrence will continue to
increase over time. This time the stak m Ihher he areat erthauake nd
catastrophic tsunami c when - ousIIf Oregonians and visitors are
enjoying coastal be an ins. To ress this increasing risk and substantially
increase resilienc in our co nunity, City of Newport is proactively addressing
tsunami prepared and miti iri within i nd use program. Land use planning that
addresses tsunami ri444 ak L. ‘I t elp increase resilience to a potentially
ca ro ml ev,fIin Newpur

Th Mineral Industries (DOGAMI) have developed Tsunami
lnu6n Maps (TIMs)which’ide the essential information for defining tsunami risk
alona reaon coast1.The Newoort. by this reference. has adooted the TIM’s.

---
ffrt-

---- -

applicab its corporate1jits and urban arowth boundary, as a part of its comprehensive
plan hazar entory. ThjrlMs are referenced in the tsunami related plan policies and
land use reg ns for .. oses of differentiating between areas of higher versus lower
risk, which info the”plement of essential and certain special occupancy facilities,
evacuation route planninQand the application of tsunami resistant building codes.

DOGAMI has further completed a study to provide local government with a quantitative
assessment of the time, speed, and challenges affecting tsunami evacuation in Newport
and nearby coastal communities for the worst case scenario identified with the TIM
mappina. This “Beat the Wave” analysis and mapping is a resource the City may use to
refine its tsunami resiliency planning efforts.

1 1A DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Map Linc-06 and Linc-07. Tsunami Inundation Maps forNewport North-South, Lincoln County, Oregon, Plate 1

types of powerful and
cadia Subduction Zone

under thewestward

tc extren
“earthquake. I

11imunities, includin
‘ni will be4e earthr

uctive tsunamis
a devastation in

rt jurisdiction

11 B DOGAMI Opeafile Report 0-19-05, Tsunami Evacuation Analysis of NewpoajJncoln County. Oregon

Page 9. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

12



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The earthquake provisions are being replaced in their entir : 5
This section of the document deals with earthquake risk aAaily,
Event, and the new language has been pulled, in
Addendum to the Lincoln County Natural Hazard M
by the City Council with Resolution No. 3725).
new section, are enclosed for your review.

Staff: The lead sections of the Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive
Plan provide context for the policies that follow. The format is akin to an executive
summary, with more detailed technical studies being referenced with citations or adopted
as appendices. There are a number of components to this section that are dated and
should be updated in the future. The amendments proposed are limited to the project at
hand, which is to update the City’s policy and regulatory documents related to tsunami
hazards.

they are quite dated.
not just the Cascadia

the City of Newport
July2075 (Adopted

referenced in the

Flood-prone Areas:

A new section has been added addressing t . Much ot tNanguage is
borrowed from model provisions contained in tion titled “Preparing for a
Cascadia Subduction Zone Tsunami; A Land UseJ’rOregon Coastal Communities”
dated April of 2015. A copy of the .Wêant chapter 1*4nclosed for reference.

“ ., ‘S.

“Stream floodinp!rg of théeoastaf[öwamdsl’n Lincoln County is an annual
menace, occurring sitim4n some years’. Major floods causing extensive damage
have occurred at ij(en times ‘bce 1 921’,,nerally in December or January, but some
have been as earI’as Novemb1jt..pr as late as March 31. The interval between major
floods has been from 1 year i*iqas,15 years, with the average just over 5 years.

ciated with Yèriods of heavy rainfall, especially after the
i capacity or after the ground has been deeply frozen.

:;to the flood intensity. Near the mouths of streams,
by high tides resulting from strong onshore winds

I’

during

Page 10. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

13



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

“Destructive flooding by streams occurred in Lincoln County during the winters of
1921, 1931, 1964-65, and 1972. Summarized briefly here, the high water inundated the
flood plains of all the major streams. Houses, barns, and livestock were lost; bridges,
sections of railroad, and boat docks were swept away; logs and debris from inland were
carried out to sea and lodged on distant beaches; residential and business areas of some
communities were under water, as were also some resorts; highways throughout the
County were blocked by floodwaters and landslides. During the 1964-65 floods, the entire
County was isolated.

“Control of flooding in Lincoln County by construction 9i11Lcontrol dams appears
to be extremely unlikely due to the configuration of the strm valleys relative to the cost
and effectiveness of a reservoir. Levees and dikes canAØIr scie protection from floods
in the lower reaches of the streams where the tidal

“The severity of floods in Lincoln CountygI1cJewporttogeth
[sicJ of adequate flood control structures poinifthat flood control rn
the form of flood-plain zoning regulations.”1

The outline of flood-prone areas on the insurance Rate Maps (FIRM)
prepared by the Federal Emergenc Iipgement A’1qy (FE MA) should be adequate for
determining flood prone areas a4isd1trict construction criteria are
imperative if the annual flood loss is tIbe rJ’; ,;•lt is ptial that local government,
the land developer, real estate agent, buflJer, a cti lot-buyer become aware of
areas of potential floodng before commf.Ifthg A: the property.”13

“Ocean Floocdlincj: Ocean 1Jooding ispredictable and can occur any time of the
year. Its causes1lude storms at sea, stifrg westerly winds, tidal forces, and large
unusual waves. Lar usu1cvaives, althouef short duration, can be very destructive.
They include tsunamrsI by e1s on the sea floor and additive waves
created ipn the crests ofskeral in-phaseaves are superimposed and reach the shore
Si mulJiusly.

‘itir
itltP1he past 33 years [1 940-1973], wind and high tides have twice caused excessive

flood daigp along Oregon’s coast. A third destructive wave was a tsunami resulting from
the Alaska’,11pJ Friday’ erthquake of 1964; smaller seismic waves have occurred since
that time. AltHi;1h ther& isno accurate method of predicting the frequency and magnitude
of ocean floodiri, the:currence of three damaging floods in 33 years suggests an
average of about onvery 10 years. Similar waves in the future will probably be even
more destructive because of the greatly increased construction of residences, motels, and

iced.

the infeasibility

12

13

Id, p. 125.

bid, 140.

Page 11. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

14



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

condominiums at or just above the normal high-tide line. The presence of logs above
normal high-tide level is clear evidence of the elevations the sea can reach.”14

Again, the Flood Insurance Rate Maps have determined from past experience the
maximum wave elevations for velocity flooding (V Zones) and areas of shallow marine
flooding (AO Zones). The siting of future structures should be based on these maps.

Ocean Shorelands:

This section summarizes inventory information abjJIjprelands adjacent to the
Pacific Ocean. Policy statements follow the Identification of the
shorelands boundary was based upon the considn of sever’ll1aracteristics of the
land. Resources and hazard areas within theAn-reIated por ionhl the shorelands
boundary are mapped on the Ocean ShoreIj1ap on page 50 (that hcan be used
by property owners and developers to help Içmine thqjel of review ‘e4ired before
issuance of development permits). These inc1 jI’

1.) Beaches, as identified in the’Qiiegon Beach

2.) Dunes, as identified in the”480 1Iort C ehensive Plan by RNKR
Associates.15

____________

ffIili1iih

_____________

3.) Younger, stabiki.dduneand op d and ‘nterdunes as identified in the
Soil Conserii6’n Servicê(SCS) stu: Beaches and Dunes of the Oregon Coast
(for areas ilot identified inftlhe RNKR sttdy).16

4.) Areas of 100-year cofasaI flood with wave action as identified on the Flood
Insurance Rate Maps.

5.) Shoreland protection me)StJres as mapped by RNKR Associates.17

6.) Significant shoreland and wetland biological habitat identified by Dr. D.W. Thomas
and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.18

7.) Coastal headlands.

14
ld, p. 141.

15
RNKR Associates, Environmental Hazard Inventory: coastal Lincoln county, Oregon, 1979.

16 U.S. Soil conservation Service, Beaches and Dunes of the Oregon coast, 1975.

17 RNKR Associates, Environmental Hazard Inventory: coastal Lincoln county, Oregon, 1979.
18

D.W. Thomas, Significant Shoreland and Wetland Biological Habitats and Riparian Vegetation, 1981.

Page 12. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

15



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

8.) Areas necessary for water-dependent and water-related uses, specifically
recreational uses and navigation facilities.

9.) Landslide areas as identified by RNKR Associates in 1979 (map numbers 13:25
through 16:25).

10.) Features of exceptional scenic quality.

11.) Riparian vegetation along streams is included within nificant wildlife habitat
areas.

•l’i

12.) The conditionally stable dunes landward of the fQJdJt

13.) The older, stabilized dunes of the South Be1i dune sheet.

14.) The deflation plain east of the foredufrTd the stabilized dunes.

Beaches andnes

Ocean Beaches

Formations: There are four stretches of ocean beah within the Newport urban
growth boundary (UGB): 1,,
1.) Beverly Beach: The areafrom Yaquina Head to north of Schooner Creek.

2.) Agate Beacb The area from Yaquina.Head south to Jump-Off Joe Rock.

3.) Nie Beach: The area from Jurde Rock south to the north jetty.

4.) Beach: The aE south of the south jetty to the southern urban growth
cipoundary.

(

‘i• .

Thtsnd of the Newport beaches is similar to other Oregon beaches. Sea cliff
erosion andIl1ne deposition or erosion are the major factors affecting the supply of sand
on the beach re stab jlijy:and movement of sand on the beach varies seasonally. The
sand is generallrodedrom beaches during winter storms. Gentler waves in summer
deposit sand on the beach.

Page 13. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

16



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

This on-and-off shore movement of sand is in addition to the transport of sand along
the beach (littoral drift). There appears to be a seasonal reversal in the direction of sand
transport along the beach. Waves from the south-west accompany the prevailing winds in
the winter months and wind and waves from the northwest predominate during the
summer. Sand movement appears to be essentially in balance when averaged over
several years. This condition is known as “zero net littoral drift.”

The impact of this zero net littoral drift and the extension of the jetties at the
entrance to Yaquina Bay has been accretion of sand adjacejp the north and south
jetties. The accumulation of sand by the jetties has resulteFome further erosion at
greater distances from the jetty. The accumulation of sanither side of the jetties at
the mouth of Yaquina Bay led to dune formation when1 t sand blew inland.

Recreational Uses: The recreational vaLof the beti have long been
recognized by Oregonians. These beaches arf1ttibrtant resourceT.t have long held
an attraction for residents and visitors. As4t’hame implies, many have been
found at Agate Beach. Agate Beach, Nye and SouthiReach have rajjplams. The
beaches, especially during the summer, a :h beachcombers, surfers,
sailboarders, runners, kite fliers, and many In enthusiasts.

________________

:he Oregon Beach Law (ORS
nd areas of the beaches.

to resolve the question of
is of the Oregon beaches. In

v. Hay,the Oregon Supreme Court said
lic’s right to use the land seaward of the

hip may rest with a private land owner. (It
rty of the state as determined by the

an high water and the vegetation line is an area where
the . lut where private ownership is recognized. The state
legisi of erosion and the receding nature of the coast line in
creatin 1969 exempted these lands from taxation.

I also regulates improvements, motor vehicle and aircraft
use, pipeline uit crossings, and removal of natural products on the ocean
shore (ORS 390 .JY25) Implementation requirements of the Land Conservation
and DeveIopmenf’:,ñission’s Beaches and Dunes Goal further restricted permits for
beach front protective structures to where development existed before January 1, 1977.
Pursuant to this requirement, the Oregon Transportation Commission adopted new Beach
Improvement Standards on March 28, 1978.

In addition to the above law, Goal I 8/”Beaches and Dunes” limits the issuance of
permits for beach front protective structures to those areas where development existed on
January 1, 1977. Development means houses, commercial and industrial buildings, and
vacant subdivision lots that are physically improved through the construction of streets and
the provision of utilities to the lot. Also included are areas where an exception to (2) of the
implementation requirements of Goal 18 has been approved.

Oregon Beach Law: The 1
390.605-390.700) to codify the pubi
The Shoreland Boundary Line was e
ownership and the right, tiiu blic to
the landmark court
that the state ha
shoreland bound
should be noted th
1899 Ore re 1947.)

Page 14. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

17



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Dune Areas

The material underlying much of the area within the Newport UGB is sand. Most of
this is marine terrace deposits, although these are sometimes difficult to distinguish from
older sandstone bedrock or older stabilized dunes. Once the old town area of the city
between Nye Beach and the bayfront had dunes, but the area is now largely developed
and little remains of these dunes.

19 U.S. Soil Conservation Service, Beaches and Dunes of the Oregon Coast, 1975.

Bay State Park
ip because it

:h Beach,

20
RNKR Associates, Environmental Hazard Inventory Coastal Lincoln County, Oregon, 1979.

All of these areas have sandy soils of either the Net arrenton, or Yaquina
series wherever the soil profile has begun to develop. Theses have been mapped by
the SCS, and the maps are on file at the Newport Plani ent. It is important to
protect these lands from erosion that would create

There is a small area with active hummo
and the north jetty that is not shown separal
lies seaward of the beach zone line. The
which is discussed below.

South Beach Dune Complex

in Environmental Haza
recent sources of ml

described
the onl
Shel

and

‘wn from the Beaches and
ing of RNKR Associates

ion.2o These are the most
uth Bea’dunes.

st dune area in Newport. It was built up
to the south jetty. RNKR Associates

in this South Beach dune sheet, which is
ed within thêNewport UGB. These dunes are shown on

s Map (beginning on page 50). The dune complex is
ch State Park, although it extends a short way north

Page 15. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

18



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The four dune landforms identified in this area are:

1.) Active foredunes: a ridge of sand adjacent to the swash zone of the beach
extending south from the mouth of Yaquina Bay.

2.) Conditionally stable dunes: present on the Iandward side of the active foredunes.

3.) Older stabilized dunes: present in approximately the center of South Beach State
Park.

4.) Deflation plain: present on the landward side of th:6tr.dune types.

Each of these dune types has different resoe values, hazards, and development
limitations.

The active foredune collects sand 4p from theopen beach. The foredune
develops where European beach grass cause44d-blown sand to accumulate in a long
ridge. These dunes need protection if they are to neffective barriers to wind erosion
and ocean storms. Foredunes arInamic landfd4jit subject to substantial growth in
height and width on accretion beacijt11dl!are vulnetbIe to rapid removal on eroding
beaches. Therefore, buildings are foredunes.

me have developed a denser
Although no longer subjected to wind

ines have not had time for significant soil
appropriate for development with special
irds such as ocean flooding.

The conditionall
vegetative cover, in
erosion like fored
development.
precautions in

and

pla

A deflatio
of the foredi

winter when the w

es of the Sdith Beach dune sheet exhibit soil development
area is entirely within a state park, no development is

iune and the stabilized dunes is an extensive deflation plain.
ien the wind removes dry sand particles from areas landward
er water table limits the depth of sand removal because

s the sand together. Standing water is common during the
lIe is higher. Some deflation plains are subject to ocean flooding.

Page 16. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

19



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

All of South Beach is known to have a groundwater aquifer, these dunes deposits
are generally thin, and they cannot (as in other places on the Oregon coast) be relied on to
supply large volumes of ground water. The dune sands rarely exceed 15 feet in thickness
(except in a small area of South Beach) and are deposited directly on marine terrace
material. The dune aquifer is not subject to significant development pressures because
much of the aquifer is within South Beach State Park. Areas outside the park slated for
development are or will be served by municipal water and sewer systems.

The primary value of the South Beach dune complex is rational. Two deflation
plain wetlands south of the old jetty railroad and open sand qtave been identified as
significant habitat, as discussed below. The parcel of laveen South Beach State
Park and Yaquina Bay has been identified as being sAJpurist commercial uses
subject to compliance with zoning regulations. ‘IJ”A111u1tI

In addition to the dune forms in the Sout1ach Dune Comp1jscribed above,
the following additional dune landforms are iq1d within the Newport1L:

UIIflhh. •1’
1.) Open sand dunes areas, in the absence’ çegeta4i, operate only inLresponse to

sand supply and wind. Open dune sand areas aredefined as wind-drifted sand in
the form of dunes and ridges h are essentia!fr devoid of vegetation.

Active open dune sand areas a igidynamic
aAi

ay advance onto forest land,
pasture land, crop land, roads, ilroads, lakes, anltitream channels, thereby
endangering imme, ‘perty. Yet, at the same time,
many open aestheffc and recreational importance.

_________

‘orphic landforms varying from wet open
d older stabilized dunes.

are youthful, cross-bedded, windstable dune landforms
that have w Wdeveloped sandy soils with little or no development of cemented
nodules, lenss, or horizons. Vegetation on these dunes ranges from native
grasses, European beachgrass, and shrubs such as scotch broom and tree lupine
to woody species. The dominant tree is shore pine, but Sitka spruce, western
hemlock, Douglas Fir, western red cedar, Oregon crabapple, and red alder also
occur.

The younger stabilized dunes are differentiated from older stabilized dunes by
differences in soil profile characteristics and the predominance of shore pine and
other woody species. Texture and cementation are the primary criteria use for
differentiation, although organic matter, depth, and distribution are also considered.

2.) lnterdun
dune sand foi

3.)

that are bothable and wet were mapped as wet interdune,
s shown as being secondary. This arrangement points

it the major uIHtto bnaged Most wet interdunes are principally wildlife
‘itat areas Hoêver, tny areas mapped as wet interdunes are old deflation

or reexposed coastal terraces A primary development limitation is the
some wtterdune areas to accommodate subsurface sewage disposal.

Page 17. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

20



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The younger stabilized dune mapping unit includes the stabilized dunes and
transition forests. These areas contain many species of birds, mammals,
amphibians, and reptiles. Occasional snags serve as nesting areas for a variety of
birds.

Younger stabilized dunes offer opportunities for the placement of man-made
facilities. Established vegetation provides shelter from the wind and a location from
which to venture out into the open sand. However, on-sjjpvestigation is needed
because building sites may be limited by slope, depth ffiir table, and horizontal
and vertical permeability if septic- tanks are used. septic drain field failures
have been reported in areas mapped as you dunes. Surface or
subsurface drainage that significantly reduce stable areas might
result in the killing of low shrubs and should ion and vegetation
removal in stabilized dune areas needs nt exposure of
open sand to wind erosion and sub!

Page 18. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

21



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Ocean Flooding

Shoreland Hazards

Ocean flooding is the inundation of lowland areas along the coast by salt water due
to tidal action, storm surge, or tsunamis (seismic sea waves). Landforms in Newport
subject to ocean flooding include beaches, the bases of sea cliffs, marshes and low-lying
interdune areas. All areas shown on the Flood Insurance Rate,,p in Zone V and areas
below the 10 foot elevation south of and adjacent to the souIIv are considered to be
areas subject to ocean flooding.

The National Flood Insurance Program (F’
residences built or rebuilt within the floodplain be
at least one foot above the base flood level. In
structures must be built so that flood probIe
of Newport flood plain management regulal
recognized as appropriate by FEMA.21

Shoreline Protection Measures

les and regulations, beach areas within the vegetation line
under the jurisdiction of the Oregon State Parks and the

ermit is required from those agencies prior to the construction
ve structures.

21 Federal Emergency Management Agency, letter to the City of Newport, 1987.

all living areas or
habitable floor is
ions, and other

as. The City
been

n has been identified as a
lide areas also notes the

rty from cliff retreat, sand
n features have been built.

Ocean wave undercutting and
major source of beach sand. The foil
role of ocean wave açtn In an
movement, and oceaJJI dinci several

RNKR
these features. Th
Control of
pected
sugg
5’
shore,

In
established
Division of Stai
of any beach fron

rap arraIong the shoreline in order to inventory
th9ceShorelands map beginning on page 50

aturelIipcaI authorities is needed to prevent unex
ilibrium or aggravated erosion of adjacent lands. RNKR

be answered in the review of new shoreline protection
ed into ordinances controlling development along the

Page 19. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

22



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Landslide and Coastal Erosion Areas

Landslide and Coastal Erosion areas were mapped within the Newport urban growth
boundary in the 2004 document titled Evaluation of Coastal Erosion Hazard Zones Along
Dune and Bluff Backed Shorelines In Lincoln County, Oregon: Cascade Head to Seal
Rock, by the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries (OFR 0-04-09). The
document and maps are included here by reference. The report describes several types of
mass movement (mud flow, slump, soil creep, and debris avalanche) and defines the
mapped landslide areas:

Prehistoric Mass Movements: Generally speaking, these large landslide and slide
blocks that predate historical observations on the OregQJ ffi out 150 years) and are
deeply eroded with no evidence of recent slide activit’

Potentially Active Mass Movements: These rjreas of mass m’ments that are
currently stable (no bowed trees or crackei1 II, and pavement) but$j evidence of
recurrent movement in the last 150 years. Ui}kthe Preh!iic slides, theF1eatures are
generally not extensively eroded and have well2J, ervedtb5ography indicative of recent
movement. Many show no evidence of movement’ce 1939 or 1967 aerial photography
but are probably more likely to have.movements th”te prehistoric slide areas.

Active Mass Movements: These areas have evidence suIs bowed trees and cracked
soil or pavement that indicate ongoingdown slope mo em’%tof large masses of soil or
rock.

landslide were mapped by Snavely and others (1976
shown rt Inland portions of the City and were not

:ified as Iandie terrain were interpreted by Schlicker and
and reconnaissance-level fieldwork. The terrain may be

similar to that produced by landslide processes and

line Hazard Areas: Coastal bluff and dune-backed shoreline
areas chara king, active erosion processes and three zones of potential
future erosion rate, and low) that respectively depict decreasing risk of
becoming active inIjuture as modeled in the DOGAMI report. The respective hazard
zones are more particularly described as follows:

Active Erosion Hazard Zones— For dune-backed shorelines, the active hazard zone
encompasses the active beach to the top of the first vegetated foredune, and
includes those areas subject to large morphological changes adjacent to the mouths
of bays due to inlet migration. On bluff-backed shorelines the active hazard zone
includes actively eroding coastal bluff escarpments and active or potentially active
coastal landslides.

and 1996). Th
investigated in the

Landsil
others (1
Ian
need

1

Page 20. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

23



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

High Risk Erosion Hazard Zones — For dune backed shorelines, the high risk
scenario is based on a large storm wave event (wave heights 47.6 ft high) occurring
over the cycle of an above average high tide, coincident with a 3.3 ft storm surge.
For bluff-backed shoreline areas, the high risk zone portrays bluff retreat that would
occur if only gradual erosion at a relatively low mean rate were to occur over a 60-
year period after the slope reaches and maintains its ideal angle of repose(for talus
of the bluff material).

Moderate Risk Erosion Hazard Zones — For d u ne-backeprelines, the moderate
risk scenario is based on an extremely severe storrht (waves 52.5 ft high)
coupled with a long term rise in sea level of I .31JjIj’or bluff-backed shoreline
areas, the moderate risk zone portrays an aveWJnt of bluff retreat that
would occur from the combined processes ofb1 k failu1i etreat to an angle of
repose, and erosion for 60 to 100 years.

Low Risk Erosion Hazard Zones —1jr1dune-backed shoreli the low risk
scenario is similar to the moderate riproach tincorporates ‘h3 ft vertical
lowering of the coast as a result of a Cgia ØJtction zone earthquake. For
bluff-backed shoreline areas, the low risk’b.rpillUstrates a worst case for bluff
retreat in 60-100 years consig g maximum1hff slope failure, erosion back to an
ideal angle of repose, and grl bluff retreat for 100 years.

wetland biological habitats and riparian
ounty were compiled by Dr. D.W. Thomas

aerial phof raphs and additional information from the
Iservan partment of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW), the U.S. Army
Engineers OCC&1J, and the U S Fish and Wildlife Service National

nventory were obtainet1&iring that study In July 1983, the City of Newport, in
with Lincoln Qounty and the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife,

Thomas Oy in the South Beach dune complex. The Ocean Shorelands
F) was amended to include only those areas considered by
reland and wetland biological habitat (see the description of

habitat areas on the next page).

Natu
Co’

coordin

South Beach’s sigi

22 . . . . .OW. Thomas, Significant Shoreland and Wetland Biological Habitat and Riparian Vegetation, 1981.

Page 21. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

24



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

The City of Newport also amended the Ocean Shoreland map to exclude the
Yaquina Estuary north and south jetties and existing jetty access roads as significant
habitat.

The rema
headland

WI
Havei
Yaa
d
5, 19Z9
research
is shown on

stal headland is Yaquina Head. This
It. The surficial extent of this geologic

taward exposure of this unit is included
as a major’*ual resource of the Newport area. Walker,
esources Analysis of the Oregon Coastal Zone identified

:ial for an exceptional coastal experience. Congress
ad as an Outstanding Natural Area (ONA) on March

ublic Law 96-199. The act also provided for wind energy
ri: boundary of the Yaquina Head DNA established by this act

lands map

23 State of Oregon, Bulletin 81: Environmental Geology of Lincoln County, Oregon, 1973.

The following significant shoreland and wetland biological habitats on Newport’s
ocean shorelands have been noted and are shown on the Ocean Shorelands map
(beginning on page 50):

> Grant Creek west of Highway 101

> An unnamed drainage east and west of Highway
Newport Municipal Airport property and south

> South Beach dune complex.

> The cliffs and offshore rocks at Yaqui

Coastal Headlands

There are two headlands
well-known Jump-Off Joe Rock. A
remains are left, and it is now a mino
of the City of Newport is located. It
erosion and seacliff retr the Hi
plan.)

to the north of the
ch State Park.

growth boundary, and one is the
e last century, only skeletal
ie terrace upon which most

and substantial marine
nd Recreation sections of this

Once the
uses on this head lat.

Ivately-owned commercial quarry, the primary developed land
now are the Yaquina Head Lighthouse and a few residences.

Page 22. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

25



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Recreation Associated with the Pacific Ocean

NaviQation Facilities

24
Benkendorf and Associates, Inventory of Oregon Coastal Beach Access Sites, 1989.

Yaquina Head, city and state parks, and several public rights-of-way to the ocean
beaches provide for recreational opportunities along the ocean shorelands. The
designation of the beaches as a special recreational area by the State of Oregon and the
acquisition and development of Agate Beach, South Beach, and Yaquina Bay State parks
encompass all of the area that is especially suited for recreation along the ocean
shorelands within the Newport UGB. Public access to the beach outside of state parks
occurs over public rights-of-way or specially acquired parcels. public access points
are noted on the Ocean Shorelands map and the lnventoregon Coastal Beach
Access Sites, published by Benkendorl and Associates,24____ i included within this plan
by reference. hr..

Navigation facilities are important use1ithe ocean shorelandh.. Navigation
facilities currently consist of the jetties at tlinouth of ‘ina Bay, thé1’quina Bay
Lighthouse and the Yaquina Head Lighthouse.’

,.ttI,
***************************************************** ,t **

N%L

Goal 1: To ptotei’ and pr y, to cecosts to the public, and to minimize
damage to the iral resqjiJs of t 1poastal zone that might result from
inappropriate devë1entj flmentê hazardous areas.

..., ‘ iiq ‘J{1’
Ei lirrea it,cnown hazards, the City of Newport shall require a site

Juation öt dangers posed by environmental hazards prior to city
llj,view and app’1l of à% posed development. It shall be the applicant’s burden

“how that conition irtØ environmentally hazardous area is feasible and safe.
STivestigationsjeologic hazardous areas shall be prepared by a registered
geoI1or enin

Policy 2:j4hall maintain and, where necessary, update ordinances that
control deve1$JJ1Nent in an environmentally hazardous area.

Policy 3: Where hazardous areas are not specifically identified but a potential
hazard may exist, the City should establish procedures within its land use
regulations to require a site-specific analysis tool, such as a geologic report.

Policy 4: The city shall continue its participation in the Flood Insurance Program
administered by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

Page 23. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

26



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Policy 5: Development within the Ocean Shorelands Boundary, as identified on the
Ocean Shorelands Map, shall comply with development criteria established within
the Zoning Ordinance, except to the extent development is permitted in accordance
with the variance procedures of the Zoning Ordinance. The city shall, from time to
time, evaluate those regulations to assure compliance with city goals.

Policy 6: Nonstructural solutions to problems of erosion or flooding shall be
preferred to structural solutions. Where flood and ero control structures are
shown to be necessary, they shall be designed to e adverse impacts on
water currents, erosion, and accretion patterns.

Policy 7: Engineering solutions or other sures rovide appropriate
safeguards shall be required prior to issL.4ie of buildin rmits in identified
hazardous areas if required by a geologi ltfreport

Policy 8: The City of Newport will uti OGAMI’ unami Inun n Maps as
the basis of a zoning overlay to guide t çe of new essentia and special
occupancy structures and develop relate hazard resiliency measures.

Policy 9: Enact building co ‘tnce res of structures within tsunami
inundation areas, with an em is Jr1’ce se igh-risk populations or that
are necessary for post tsunami ove

Policy 10: PrToi jevelo . of verticvacuation structures in areas
where reacigh grou’1is impr al.

Staff: The tIJjplicis hieing added commit the City to (a) put in place a tsunami
overlay zone III 211,in uses within inundation areas and (b) adopt tsunami
rr,Y4Qg co4bquirements for high risk structures. The third policy, relating

..hrticai e.watidrI11tructures has already been implemented in the zoning
WV ‘‘ ‘ill t tiji

‘it c rdinance. The,4jI4cy r4brJng a tsunami hazard and disclosure statement for new
elopment in hrdarès has been dropped. If the Commission believes that it

is 1pssential it&,, then a City legal review would be needed, in addition to
outr1, to affecte,Øroperty owners and the real estate community.

A numberd model policies are not included as they are eitherredundantor
call for the di4.!’th take additional steps that may or may not be viable, or would
require further review and analysis before they could be implemented. A copy of
the full package of policies, presented at the August 26, 2019 Commission work
session is enclosed.

Goal 2: Promote public education of known hazards, and facilitate orderly and
expedient evacuation ofresidents and visitors in response to a catastrophic event.

Policy 1: Periodically update, implement. and refine natural hazard mitigation and
emergency operations plans, and ensure city ordinance and regulations respond to
plan recommendations.

Page 24. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

27



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Policy 2: Encourage and support hazard education, outreach, training and practice.

Policy 3: Develop robust and redundant evacuation routes that are well signed and
integrated with evacuation assembly areas, shelters and supply caches.

Policy 4: Collaborate with local, state, and federal partners to effectively leverage
resources, and establish a culture of preparedness supporting evacuation route
planning to minimize risk and maximize hazard resiliej1,

Staff: This new goal encapsulates the education an4 ach needed to effectively
plan for hazard events. It has been tailored “all hazards,” not Just
tsunami’s, and speaks to both the City’s interqaWd ext JJ constituencies. It is
intended to address, in summary form, likejj1fr concepts p7jJjjted at the August
26, 2079 work session.

Goal 2: To protect and, where pract4 enhancQIjj1entified i1nmentalIy

sensitive areas. I Ij

Policy 1: Identified environmentally sensitive shall be mapped on the Ocean
Shorelands Map. tIl1Jl:

‘[‘_[r’h[rf_ hiI1’Policy 2: Residential deveIopmtnd cg tjl antiindustriaI buildings shall be
prohibited on aq.: unes, d lyforedunes that are subject to
ocean undercurl’g orv overtopt , and beaches and deflation plains that are
subject to oeVi flood ingllliOther dlopment in these areas shall be permitted
only if the fljs requirhfolicy low, are met and it is demonstrated that
the proposed

> Is adequately protected from any geologic hazards, wind erosion,
undercutting, oce flooding and storm waves; and

Is designed to minize adverse environmental effects.

Policy 3: Foredunes shall not be breached by non-natural causes except in an
emergency and shall be restored after the emergency by the party causing the
breach.

Policy 4: The city shall cooperate with federal and state agencies, private
individuals, and others in the determination of natural areas.

Policy 5: The city will complete the Goal 5 process for wetlands identified on the
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Wetland Inventory maps by the next regularly
scheduled periodic review.

Policy 6: The criteria for review of all shore and beach front protective structures
shall provide that:

Page 25. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

28



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

> Visual impacts are minimized;

> Necessary access to the beach is maintained;

> Negative impacts on adjacent property are minimized; and

Long-term or recurring costs to the public are avoided.

habitats and coastal
consistent with the

Policy 7: Significant shoreland and wetland biolog
headlands shall be protected. Uses in these areas
protection of natural values.

Policy 8: Development in beach and dune ai
shall only be permitted if the following issu
are made:

> The type of use proposed an
and adjacent areas;

> Temporary and p
maintenance of new

>

develop

>

propriate findings

the site

and

H

the planned

ny adverse effects of the

limited to those minimal areas where
to accommo’’ate allowed development. Cleared areas,

‘ved during construction, shall be revegetated or land
)SiOfl and sedimentation of near shore ocean waters.

Page 26. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

29



w ca CD F
)

H 0 H H 0 m z m 0 0 0 m 3: m z (I
,

I,, I z z DC C DC CD DC C CD (‘C

vN

n 0 I
I

* “
I

-1 3: H

*
I
I

I
3
: *

3:

L
1 H

0’
3:

0 H
cn

I
H

II
ii

I“
‘

‘I
i (I

II
I

CD C 0) N
)

N
)

C N
)

C 0) C 0 - z 0) C 0) CD 0) C - CD 0 C’
)

CD 0 0 D 0 - CD z CD 0 0 0 3 CD CD D U
) CD -i
:i

0) D[
C

)
0

30



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

Pag. 5. CiTY 07 I1EWPOT C0P1IIVE PL&$: )Iatia F.atuZ..

OCEAN SHORELANDS

AGA14

TATf P’$C

20TH ST.

16TH ST.

*

11TH ST.

/

Page 28. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

31



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

OCEAN SHORELANDS

U

N.W. I TN ST

N.W. STH ST.

LL
N.W. 6TH ST.

N.W. 3RD ST.

U
WEST OLIVE ST.

S.w. 2ND ST

Q

*

S .W.

s.w.

MINNIE S’.

GOVERNMENT

Paqe 52. CITY Of IEWPOT C kE N5IV PLAM Natuzai f.atx.s.

Page 29. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

32



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

ci

Paq S. CITY OF NPOT cpzlsIvI PI.A$;

OCEAN SHORELANDS
-

— _J L..... f

riri

z

LU

C

SFLAJ .
fl

Page 30. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

33



February 24, 2020 Mark-up of Natural Features Section of the Newport Comprehensive Plan

(

OCEAN SHORELANDS

Paq. S4. CZV 0? KWP0?T COIRfKEkStVX PkM Nt.1

Page 31. CITY OF NEWPORT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: Natural Features.

34



February 24, 2020 Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

(Staff comments, in italics, are provided for context and are not a part of the code.)

CHAPTER 14.46 TSUNAMI HAZARDS OVERLAY ZONE

14.46.010 Purpose

C. Vertical evacuation structure means a stand-alone
structure, portion of a building or constructed earthen
mound designed for vertical evacuation from a tsunami
that is accessible to evacuees, has sufficient height to
place evacuees above the design level of tsunami

The purpose of this section is to promote the public health,
safety, and general welfare to minimize risks tessential
facilities, and special occupancy structures sehigh risk
populations within a tsunami inundation area istent with
Statewide Planning Goals 7 and 18, and t I Features
Section of the Newport Comprehensive

Staft The purpose section is
Commission reviewed at its A.
cross references to the a
and Natural Features Section
which provide context and poilcy
the regulations.

14.46.020 Definitions

As used in

A.

of

ictures housing, supporting
ties of toxic or explosive

the safety of the public if
ubject to a high hazard

;sification by the Oregon

area means those portions of the City
,ith1f’the “XXL” tsunami inundation area

is depicted on the maps titled “Local Source
ubduction Zone) Tsunami Inundation Map

iorth, Oregon” and “Local Source (Cascadia
n Zone) Tsunami Inundation Map Newport

Oregon” produced by the Oregon Department of
Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI), dated
February 8, 2013.

Page 1 of 5

35



February 24, 2020 Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

inundation, and is designed and constructed with the
strength and resiliency needed to withstand the effects of
tsunami waves.

Staff This is a truncated version of the4 list of definitions the
Commission previously reviewed. Definitions for Child Care
Facility, Day Care Facility, and Substantial Improvement
already exist in NMC 74.07.020, Definitions, so they need not
be replicated in this chapter. Definitions for Essen I Facility,
School, and Special Occupancy Structures are eded as
the uses that fall within these definitions addressed
directly in the code.

1. Hospitals and other medical facilities having surgery
and emergency treatment areas;

2. Fire and police stations;

3. Emergency vehicle shelters and garages;

14.46.030 Overlay Zone Established

A Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zohe District shall be mdi
on the Zoning Map of the City of.Newport the lettei
THOZ, the boundaries of whichencomn d conform to
the tsunami inundation area.

Staff This is requit
and tie it to the City’s

14.46.040

zone

all

14.46.

;t forth in section 14.46.050,
provisions of the underlying
te additional requirements

presented at the August 26, 2079

in accordance with section 14.46.060,
are prohibited in the Tsunami Hazard

orized
ig uses

one:

Page 2of5

36



February 24, 2020 Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

4. Structures and equipment in emergency preparedness
centers;

5. Standby power generating equipment for essential
facilities;

6. Structures and equipment in government
communication centers and other facilities required for
emergency response;

7. Medical, assisted, and senior livin
resident incapacitated patients.
residential facilities, but not rc..
defined in ORS 443 .400;

8.

lities with
includes
mes, as

9. Day care facilities;

10. Hazardous

11.Tanks or
supporting

B.

housing or
or
in‘ses listed

ice with section 14.46.060,
in the portions of the

;ubject to inundation from
nitude local source tsunami

ry level;

capacity greater than 250 individuals
private or parochial school through

ire facilities;

lings for colleges or adult education schools with a
capacity greater than 500 persons; and

4. Tanks or other structures containing, housing or
supporting water or fire- suppression materials or
equipment required for the protection of uses listed in
this sub-section.

Page 3 of 5

37



february 24, 2020 Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

C. The provisions of this section do not apply to water-
dependent and water-related facilities, including but not
limited to docks, wharves, piers and marinas.

Staff The list ofuses is very similar to what the Commission
reviewed at the August26, 2079 work session. References to
assisted and senior living were added and the number of
incapacitated residents staying at such facilities, including
medical facilities, has been removed. A carve outS included
for residential care homes, which serve 5 or fe dividuals
in a residential setting. Residential faciliti e included.
These can be licensed for up to 75 individu terms are
defined in NMC 74.07.020, Definition ot not all
residential care homes or facilitie use Inc itated
individuals. The threshold betwe child care fac nd
day care facility is 72 children.

14.46.060 Use Exceptions

A use listed in sect14.46.O5O e permitted upon
authorization of a Uson issue ccordance with a
Type Ill decision-mak1, jre as ed in Chapter
14.52, Procedural e following
requirement re satisfie&:.

A. PubIichooI y be pted upon findings that there
is a need for th chool within the boundaries of a
sch I district filling Nil need cannot otherwise be
acc ish

Fire or p stations may e permitted upon findings that
therIa n or a strategic location.

C. Uses ‘jwise ohibited, such as child or day care
facifities, allowed when accessory to a permitted use,
provided a plan is submitted outlining the steps that will be

ken evacuate occupants to designated assembly
aSS.

D. Otiuses prohibited section 14.46.050 may be permitted
upon the following findings:

1. There are no reasonable, lower-risk alternative sites
available for the proposed use; and

Page 4of5

38



February 24, 2020 Tsunami Hazards Overlay Zone

2. Adequate evacuation measures will be provided such
that life safety risk to building occupants is minimized;
and

Staff This section has been revised to fist the types of
route improvements the City can reasonably expect to
require at this time.

3. The structures will be designed and constructed in a
manner to minimize the risk of structural failure during
the design earthquake and tsunami event.

Staft This section is as presented at
work session.

2019

14.46.070 Vertical Evacuation Structures

All vertical evacuation structures, it
shall adhere to the provisi
14.1 0.020(D)(1 -4).

Staff This section is as
work session.

14.46.080

IC

26,

residential

Hazai

A.

multifamily
ardevelopment
in the Tsunami

iccess from the building(s)
ray or City designated

signage, in a format and location
“y, indicating the direction and location

ation routes; and

‘ency evacuation information in public areas,
ms, or common areas, alerting residents,

and employees to the tsunami threat. Such
infnation shall include a map indicating the direction and
location of the closest evacuation route.

PageS of 5

39



—

MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission

Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A

• August 26, 2019
6:00 p.m.

Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, and Mike franldm.

Planning Commissioners by Phone: Bill Branigan

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Dustin Capn

Public Members Present: Madeline Shannon, and Mona Linstromberg.

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; Associate Planner, Rachel Cotton;
and Executive Assistant, Shem Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Unfinished Business.

A. Continued Review of the Framework for a New Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone. Cotton reviewed the
changes that had happened from the previous Planning Commission meeting discussion. She asked for the
Commission’s thoughts on the Hazard Acknowledgement and Disclosure Statement and if it should be
included. Hanselman questioned what the benefit to the City would be. Cotton explained it was an educational
tool. Hanselman thought there were better ways to educate without having to sign a document. Hardy thought
the disclosure was important and should be acknowledged. Hanselman thought it should be acknowledged
by all residents. After a discussion, Cotton noted that apart from Hanselman, the Commission was in general
agreement to include the statement.

Cotton reviewed the tsunami evacuation facilities improvement plan. Berman thought the plan should be
incorporated into the Transportation System Plan (TSP) and Park System Master Plan (PSMP). Cotton
explained that the PSMP was essentially done and TSP was afready scoped and didn’t necessary include
evacuation. Tokos noted that there were a few projects in TSP the City needed to make sure was vetted
enough in order to engage new development projects to incorporate trails or signage for evacuations. Berman
was concerned that a large portion of the pages would be duplicates on each of the plans. Tokos explained
they would create something like a technical memo that was 6-8 pages that explained what the projects were
and the rationale. Cotton asked if the Commission thought it was useful to establish technical projects
connected to “Beat the Wave”. The Commission was in general agreement that it should.

Cotton reviewed the DLCD Model Code changes. She explained that she added back in the Evacuation Policy
Concepts Section #3. Capri asked what the lighting conditions were. Cotton explained this section was about
how the signs would be lit at night and noted she could share the standards on this with the Commission.
Capri thought this was vague in the code. Cotton would clarify this.

Cotton explained that the language for the rationale for the policies related to reducing development risk in
high tsunami risk areas. This was meant to cover both )OCL and M general policies. Cotton reported that the
Newport High School had a capacity of 662 students. Berman asked why in Section 8.viii. “incapacitated”
needed to be included. He felt the distinction wasn’t necessary. Hanselman thought medical didn’t cover
senior living and assisted living facilities. He thought the term “daycare” should be mentioned in this list.
Tokos said the reason it wasn’t included was that “daycare” picked up smaller facilities while the term “child
care” was broader. Hanselman thought it should be included. Berman reminded that there were elderly
daycare facilities and felt it should be included. Capri suggested adding a line item for any facility with
incapacitated persons. Tokos suggested it say assisted living or nursing homes. Berman thought the number
for medical facilities should be changed from 50 down to 20, or taken out. The Commission was in general

1 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/26/19.

40



agreement to take out the number for medical facilities. Tokos suggested looking into residential facilities
and how they tie back to State licensing for group homes to see how to weave them into the code. Cotton
noted there seemed to be a consensus to include these in the XXL. Franklin asked if temporary structures
should be included in the special occupancy structures. Cotton explained that if they were included in this
section it would limit event locations for things such as the Seafood and Wine Festival.

Cotton reviewed the evacuation route improvement requirements next. Berman asked if there were any other
categories other than low density residential. Cotton said there wasn’t. Branigan asked what the defmition of
“substantial improvement” was. Cotton explained it was anything 50 percent or more of the real market value.
Cotton asked the Commission if they wanted to include Section 6.a.iii. A discussion ensued regarding what
the posting requirements should be. Tokos thought it should be geared to a well thought out plan centered
around lodging. Capri was concerned that the code referenced the TSP and TEFIP when they weren’t in place
yet. Cotton said until they were in place, the City wouldn’t have to do the requirements, and placed
importance on figuring out how extensive the TEFIP needed to be. Cotton said they could leave the section
out and wait until the TEFW was adopted. Tokos suggested adding a statement that these provisions did not
apply to special events. Cotton noted the items that were taken out for the evacuation route improvements in
Section 6.c. Capri thought wayfmding was important. Berman thought there needed to be consistency. Cotton
explained that the design standards would address this.

Cotton covered the vertical evacuation structures next. Patrick noted that the numbers in this section jumped
from 7 to 9 and 8 had been left out. Cotton would fix the numbering. Tokos reviewed the next steps. He
thought there would be another work session meeting with the Commission and suggested Meg Reed with
the DLCD be present to answer questions.

3. New Business.

A. Update on the Short-Term Rental Ordinance Implementation. Tokos reviewed the update on the short-
term rental (STR) implementation. He noted that the work group had already met on August 20th. The
materials given to the Commission were the same that was shared with the work group. LodgingRevs had
been hired to manage a 24/7 hotline for complaints. Staff training would be held on Aug 29th for the hotline.
There would be a community roll out once the staff training was done. The City would order signs with the
hotline information for all the rentals to post. Tokos noted that there was a cushion in the LodgingRevs
contract that would help pay for the signs.

Tokos reported there had been an initial advertising sweep for unlicensed SIRs and the Community Service
Officer (CSO) would be working on notifying them. Berman asked that the CSO be educated on the
occupancy limits rules. Tokos covered the number of STR licenses that had renewed, the incomplete
renewals, and the units that didn’t renew. The STRs that didn’t renew would have to submit new applications.
Because they were nonconforming they had a right to submit a new license application.

Tokos noted that the STR waitlist wouldn’t be touched until after November 1st when the deadline for the
applications in process was over. The STR Work Group would meet in late October/early November again.
There would be a focus on the centralized complaint system at this meeting. Hanselman asked if the
applications that were incomplete were because the applicants didn’t supply the materials requested from the
letter. Tokos reported it was. He reminded that the ordinance stated that applicants would have 30 days from
August 15th to provide the additional information for their incomplete applications.

Adjourned at 6:59 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Sherri Marineau,
Executive Assistant

2 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 8/2619.

41



CITY OF NEWPORT
RESOLUTION NO. 3725

A Resolution Adopting the City of Newport Representation in the Updates to the
Lincoln County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan

WHEREAS, the City of Newport recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to
people, property and infrastructure within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for
harm to people, property and infrastructure from future hazard occurrences; and

WHEREAS, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan is required as a condition
of future funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster
mitigation grant programs; and

WHEREAS, the City of Newport has fully participated in the FEMA prescribed
mitigation planning process to prepare the Lincoln County, Mull/-Jurisdictional
Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan, which has established a comprehensive,
coordinated planning process to eliminate or minimize these vulnerabilities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Newport has identified natural hazard risks and prioritized
a number of proposed actions and programs needed to mitigate the vulnerabilities
of the City of Newport to the impacts of future disasters within the Lincoln County,
Mu/ti-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Miti’ation Plarr and

WHEREAS, these proposed projects and programs have been incorporated into
the Lincoln County, Mu/ti-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation P/an that has
been prepared and promulgated for consideration and implementation by the cities
of Lincoln County; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal
Emergency Management Agency, Region X officials have reviewed the Lincoln
County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan and pre-approved it
(dated, August 19, 2015) contingent upon this official adoption of the participating
governments and entities;

WHEREAS, the NHMP is comprised of four main etements: Basic Plan, Hazard
Annex, City Addenda, and Mitigation Resources, collectively referred to herein as
the NHMP; and

WHEREAS, the NHMP is in an on-going cycle of development and revision to
improve its effectiveness; and

42



x.I.NIC0Va)Ja)>a)

z0)zU
.

z>
-

DCUC0UC-
J

0
-

cv

‘IIi
=

i
t

°
H•

i
I

=0
j

I
I

ii’
I

I
I

h
t
i
•

I

,
-:

.
.

-
I)

1L
i
i

N
:
-
,
:
j

.

c.•
_

‘

I

I
•i

1.1
IH

lh iiQjj1
•
•
m

.
r

IJ,

Cri>
-

Dz0)bIJ
cv3
-

000)U0

43



U.-IUUU.wzUIbO
U

-

L
1

(-4

zU)bOCD

z4
-,
C0UC0C-
J

II
o

u
,:

JI
iL

9
h

I
ti€

1
.

)
I

I
l
l

‘
I

f

I
!11

•
i.-

_
;•

h

21LI I

llt

U
,

‘-4
Cr4>

-

J
‘
‘
I

j
‘JH

;?

0U)U0‘I,

44



Figure NA-i Relative Earthquake Hazard

Source: DOGAMI

Page NA-26 July 2015 Lincoln County NHMP

45



Legend

Child Care Facility

Critical Facility

Assembly Area

Newport Fire
Station 3400

Oregon %j -.

North Newport
Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Image Taken July 2018 Miles
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

NE. OFV[ City of Newport
Community Development Department
169 Sw Coast Highway Phona:1.541.574.0629

______________

Newport, OR 97365 Fao:1 5415740644

ml, oop I, i,tlor ,riy od ho ,,ot boe, p,ep,ed 5,, ,o, o it,,i5bio to, iegl,, ergee,hg,, eyOg it
o,l,do,do5fso, TheCi fNe*ptw pCbi5opdoSoo ,,,,,eo,d we,, ,tthl,

0.25 0.50

46



Legend

* Child Care Facility

• Critical Facility

Assembly Area

Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Sam Case
Elementary

Lincoln County
Sheriff and

Emergency Services
Lincoln
County Jail

Samaritan Pacific
Communities Hospital

NE. OfJ City of Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway Phone:1.541.5740629

_______________

Newport, OR 97365 Fax;1 541.574,0644

This rap is tat i4atoat,aral ,,as arty ord boa rat boar prapatad fat, ra, is itsaftable tat lagal. ar5iraatirg. t’ysyir5 patpasss. It
edadas data ftar, adapsasotasa. Tha City at Neopattasar teaparaibity it, its tatapilatiar at ,oa sad oats at the
irtsratiotetoodtatifyslatfttootioiththeCityatNaopattCtyDeyalaptrotttDapa,tirart.

I

M

L

XXL

A

A

.1f2TH
11TH ST Newport Fire NE 11TH ST

* Station 3200

Newport
Middle
School

i-a..

Central Newport
Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Image Taken July 2018
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

...jMiles
0.50 0.25

47



i

NE- ORI City of Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway Phone:1541.574.0629

______________

Newport, OR 97365 Fao:1541 574 0644

Thy ,tap a faa itaaaaaatia,tal ace aaly shy haS tat beeS paeptaed Is,. so, sit saible I,, legal, eagheesog. as syaaeyirg patpas.a.
ocladea deS hata esasacea. The City f Neopsates wee te asbdty te, its ,sopi5batt at yea asad oats at this
tttasoabaoag*edtetttyaiadaftaetotththeCityetNegpattC,raytaeaelapaaeetDepa,twest.

Image Taken July 2018
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

Legend

Child Care Facility

Critical Facility

Assembly Area

Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

gje

32ND ST

E 35TH ST

0

Oregon Coast
Community

SE 50TH ST

College

—ii.

/ “S

South Beach
Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

, 1

.jMiles
0.50 0.25

48



Legend

Child Care Facility

Critical Facility

Assembly Area

Tsunami

FM

Inundation Scenarios

Newport Fire
Station 3300

NE. 0F[ City of Newport
Corn munity Development Department
169 SWCoasL Highway Phone:1541574.0629
Newport, OR 97365 Fax:1 5415740644

Th6 ,op N, i,,l Iya,dh beo, p,apod hr a N, NgaI, ,giaewg ayiag ppa. It
i,kdtdNfra 1tott. Tht CytfN pt,tattm.a,epotsbdityfa,iR t htio,
itta,at,edNNitfoto,,wththeCiytfNotpottCtyDaeIapattDepaOaett.

Newport Airport Neighborhood
Critical Facilities and Tsunami Inundation Scenarios

Image Taken July 2018 Miles
4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Quantum Spatial, Inc. Corvallis, OR

I.

:,

:‘t

Newport
Municipal
Airport

025 0.50

49



OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

day care during religious functions shall be classified as
part of the primary occupancy.

305.2.2 Five or fewer children. A facility having five or
fewer children receiving such day care shall be classified
as part of the primary occupancy.

305.2.3 Five or fewer children in a dwelling unit. A
facility such as the above within a dwetling unit and hav
ing five or fewer children receiving such day care shall be
classified as a Group R-3 occupancy or shall comply with
the Residential Code.

SECTION 306
FACTORY GROUP F

306.1 Factory Industrial Group F. factory Industrial Group
F occupancy includes, among others, the use of a building or
structure, or a portion thereof, for assembling, disassembling,
fabricating, finishing, manufacturing, packaging, repair or
processing operations that are not classified as a Group H
hazardous or Group S storage occupancy.

306.2 Moderate-hazard factory industrial, Group F-i.
Factory industrial uses that are not classified as Factory
Industrial F-2 Low Hazard shall be classified as f-l Moder
ate Hazard and shall include, but not be limited to, the follow
ing:

Aircraft (manufacturing, not to include repair)
Appliances
Athletic equipment
Automobiles and other motor vehicles
Bakeries
Beverages: over 16-percent alcohol content
Bicycles
Boats
Brooms or brushes
Business machines
Cameras and photo equipment
Canvas or similar fabric
Carpets and rugs (includes cleaning)
Clothing
Construction and agricultural machinery
Disinfectants
Dry cleaning and dyeing
Electric generation plants
Electronics
Engines (including rebuilding)
Food processing establishments and commercial kitchens

not associated with restaurants, cafeterias and similar
dining facilities more than 2,500 square feet (232 m2) in
area.

Furniture
Hemp products
Jute products
Laundries
Leather products
Machinery
Metals
Miliwork (sash and door)
Motion pictures and television filming (without

spectators)
Musical instruments
Optical goods
Paper mills or products
Photographic film
Plastic products
Printing or publishing
Recreational vehicles
Refuse incineration
Shoes
Soaps and detergents
Textiles
Tobacco
Trailers
Upholstering
Wood distillation
Woodworking (cabinet)

306.3 Low-hazard factory industrial, Group F-2. factory
industrial uses that involve the fabrication or manufacturing
of noncombustible materials that during finishing, packing or
processing do not involve a significant fire hazard shall be
classified as F-2 occupancies and shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

Beverages: up to and including 16-percent alcohol content
Brick and masonry
Ceramic products
Foundries
Glass products
Gypsum
Ice
Metal products (fabrication and assembly)
Wood barrel and bottled wine aging facilities in wineries

SECTION 307
HIGH-HAZARD GROUP H

307.1 High-hazard Group H. High-hazard Group H occu
pancy includes, among others, the use of a building or struc
ture, or a portion thereof, that involves the manufacturing.
processing, generation or storage of materials that constitute a
physical or health hazard in quantities in excess of those
allowed in control areas complying with Section 414, based
on the maximum allowable quantity limits for control areas
set forth in Tables 307.1(1) and 307.1(2). Hazardous occu
pancies are classified in Groups H-i, H-2, H-3, H-4 and H-S
and shall be in accordance with this section and the require
ments of Section 415. Hacardotts materials stored, or used on
top of roofs or canopies. shall comply with this code.

307.1.1 Uses other than Group H. An occupancy that
stores, uses or handles hacczrdous materials as described in
one or more of the following items shall not be classified
as Group H, but shall be classified as the occupancy that it
most nearly resembles.

1. Buildings and structures occupied for the applica
tion of flammable finishes, provided that such
buildings or areas conform to the requirements of
Section 416.

2079 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE 61

50



p

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

2. Wholesale and retail sales and storage of flamma
ble and combustible liquids in mercantile occu
pancies conforming to this code.

3. Closed piping system containing flammable or
combustible liquids or gases utilized for the opera
tion of machinery or equipment.

4. Cleaning establishments that utilize combustible
liquid solvents having a flash point of 140°F
(60°C) or higher in closed systems employing
equipment listed by an approved testing agency,
provided that this occupancy is separated from all
other areas of the building by 1-hour fire barriers
constructed in accordance with Section 707 or 1-
hour horizontal assemblies constructed in accor
dance with Section 711, or both.

5. Cleaning establishments that utilize a liquid solvent
having a flash point at or above 200°F (93°C).

6. Liquor stores and distributors without bulk stor
age.

7. Refrigeration systems.

8. The storage or utilization of materials for agricul
tural purposes on the premises.

9. Stationary storage battery systems installed in
accordance with this code and the Mechanical
Code.

10. Corrosive personal or household products in their
original packaging used in retail display.

11. Commonly used corrosive building materials.

12. Buildings and structures occupied for aerosol
product storage shall be classified as Group S-i,
provided that such buildings conform to the
requirements of this code.

13. Display and storage of nonflammable solid and
nonflammable or noncombustible liquid hazard-
otis materials in quantities not exceeding the max
imum allowable quantity per control area in
Group M or S occupancies complying with Sec
tion 4 14.2.5.

14. The storage of black powder, smokeless propellant
and small arms primers in Groups M and R-3 and
special industrial explosive devices in Groups B,
F, M and S, provided such storage conforms to the
quantity limits and requirements prescribed in this
code.

TABLE 307.1(1)
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS POSING A PHYSICAL HAZARDaIm np

GROUP WHEN STORAGEb USE-CLOSED SYSTEMSb USE-OPEN SYSTEMSb
THE MAXIMUM I

MATERIAL CLASS ALLOWABLE Solid Liquid
Gas cubic

Solid Liquid
Gas cubic Solid Liquid

QUANTITY IS pounds gallons
feet NTP

pounds gallons
NTP

pounds gallons
EXCEEDED (cubic feet) (pounds) a (cubic feet) (pounds) ee a

(cubic feet) (pounds)

Combustible dust NA 1-1-2 See
NA NA See NA NA See

NANote q Note q Note q

Combustible H-3 NA NA NA NA NA

11 H-2 or H-3 120d.e 120d 30d

Combustible liquidc lilA H-2 or H-3 NA 330de NA NA 330d NA NA
TuB NA 13,200 l3,200f

Cryogenic flammable NA H-2 NA 45L NA NA 45d NA NA

Cryogenic inert NA NA NA NA NL NA NA NL NA NA

Cryogenic oxidizing NA H-3 NA 45d NA NA 45d NA NA lOd

Division 1.1 H-I iCS (1)eg o•5 (O.25) O.25 (O.25)
Division 1.2 K-I 1eg (l) (025)g 025g (O.25)
Division 1.3 H—I or 1-1-2 5g (5)e.g (l) (1)g

Explosives Division 1.4 H-3 50eg (50). NA 5O (50)g NA NA NA
Division l.4G H-3 l25e1 NA NA NA NA NA
Division 1.5 H-i 1eg (1)e.5 o•5 (025)g o5 (O25)
Division 1.6 H-i 1eg NA NA NA NA NA

Gaseous NA 1 000de NA 1 000d

Flammable gas Liquefied H-2 NA (150Y1.e ‘NA
NA (150)de ‘NA

NA NA

Flammable liquidc
IC orH-3 NA Jd.e NA NA pod NA NA

Flammable liquid,
combination NA -— NA 120d h NA NA 120h NA NA 30d.h

(IA,IB.IC) orH-3
I

(

I

I

(continued)

62 2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE

51



OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

TABLE 307.1(f)—continued
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS POSING A PHYSICAL HAZARDa,l,mn.P

GROUP WHEN STORAGEb USE-CLOSED SYSTEMSb USE-OPEN SYSTEMSb
THEMAXIMUM I

MATERIAL CLASS ALLOWABLE Solid Liquid
Gas cubic Solid Liquid

Gas cubic Solid Liquid
QUANTITY IS pounds gallons

feet at NTP pounds gallons
feet at NTP pounds gallons

EXCEEDED (cubic feet) (pounds) (cubic feet) (pounds) (cubic feet) (pounds)

Flammable solid NA H-3 125de NA NA 125d NA NA 25d NA

Gaseous NA NA NA NL NA NA NL NA NAInert gas
Liquefied NA NA NA NL NA NA NL NA NA

UD H-I leg O.25 (O.25) O.25 (O.25)
I H—2 51e (5)d.e (1)’ Id (l)d
II H-3 50de tsoy’ 50d (50)d IO (10)d

NA NAOrganic peroxide rn H-3 125de (175)d.e 175d (125)d 25d (25)d

IV NA NL NL NL NL NL NL
V NA NL NL NL NL NL NL

4 1-1-1 p (1y 025g (O.25) O.25 (025)g

3k H-2 or 1-1-3 loe (10.)de 2d (2)d 2d (2)11
Oxidizer NA NA2 1-1-3 250de (25O)d 250d (250)11 50’ (50)d

1 NA 4,000ef (4,O00Y’ 4,O00 (4,000) 1,O00 (l,000)
Gaseous NA 1,50011 e NA I .50011

1-1-3 NA NA NANAOxidizing gas
Liquefied (150)d.e NA ([5O)e NA

Pyrophoric NA H-2 4e (4)e. g 5e. g P (I) I0 0 0

4 H-i 1e.g (1)e,g beg 0.25 (O.25 2eg 0.25 (O.25)
3 H-i or 1—1—2 5’ (5)11. e 50d.e 111 ( )d lOd e 111 (1)11

Unstable (reactive)
2 H-3 Sode (50)11 e 750d.e 5011 (50)d 750d.e 10d (10)11
I NA NL NL NL NL NL NL NL NL

3 H-2 511 (5)d.e 5d (5)d 111 (1)
Water reactive 2 H-3 50d (soye NA 5011 (50)11 NA l0 (10)’

1 NA NL NL NL NL NL NL

For SI: I cubic foot = 0.028m3,lpound = 0.454 kg, I gallon = 3.785 L.
NL = Not Limited; NA = Not Applicable; UD = Unclassified Detonable.
a. For use of control areas. see Section 414.2.
b. The aggregate quantity in use and storage shall not exceed the quantity listed for storage.
c. The quantities of alcoholic beverages in retail and wholesale sales occupancies shall not be limited provided the liquids are packaged in individual containers

not exceeding 1 .3 gallons. In retail and wholesale sales occupancies, the quantities of medicines, foodstuffs or consumer products, and cosmetics containing
not more than 50 percent by volume of water-miscible liquids with the remainder of the solutions not being flammable. shall not be limited, provided that
such materials are packaged in individual containers not exceeding 1. .3 gallons.

d. Maximum allowable quantities shall be increased 100 percent in buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with
Section 903.3.1.1. Where Note e also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

e. Maximum allowable quantities shall be increased 100 percent when stored in approved storage cabinets, day boxes, gas cabinets, gas rooms or exhausted
enclosures or in listed safety cans in accordance with Section 414.18. Where Noted also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

f. Quantities shall not be limited in a building equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1.
g. Allowed only in buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1.
h. Containing not more than the maximum allowable quantity per control area of Class IA, 13 or IC flammable liquids.
i. The maximum allowable quantity shall not apply to fuel oil storage complying with Section 2802.
j. Quantities in parentheses indicate quantity units in parentheses at the head of each column.
k. A maximum quantity of 220 pounds of solid or 22 gallons of liquid Class 3 oxidizers is allowed when such materials are necessary for maintenance purposes,

operation or sanitation of equipment when the storage containers and the manner of storage are approved.
I. Net weight of the pyrotechnic composition of the fireworks. Where the net weight of the pyrotechnic composition of the fireworks is not known. 25 percent

of the gross weight of the fireworks, including packaging, shall be used.
m.For gallons of liquids, divide the amount in pounds by 10 in accordance with Section 414.1.5.1.
n. For storage and display quantities in Group M and storage quantities in Group S occupancies complying with Section 4 14.2.5, see Tables 414.2511) and

414.2.5(2).
o. Densely packed baled cotton that complies with the packing requirements of ISO 8115 shall not be included in this material class.
p. The following shall not be included in determining the maximum allowable quantities:

1. Liquid or gaseous fuel in fuel tanks on vehicles.
2. Liquid or gaseous fuel in fuel tanks on motorized equipment operated in accordance with this code.
3. Gaseous fuels in piping systems and fixed appliances regulated by the fuel Gas Code.
4. Liquid fuels in piping systems and fixed appliances regulated by the Mechanical Code.

q. Where manufacttired, generated or used in such a manner that the concenation and conditions create a fire or explosion hazard based on information
prepared in accordance with Section 4 14.1.3.

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE 63

52



t

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

TABLE 307.7 (2)
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITY PER CONTROL AREA OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS POSING A HEALTH HAZARDa,c,th,

STORAGEb USE-CLOSED SYSTEMSb USE-OPEN SYSTEMSb

MATERIAL Solid Liquid gallons Gas cubic feet at NTP Solid Liquid gallons Gas cubic feet at NTP Solid Liquid gallons
poundsu e (pounds)d (pounds)d poundsd (pounds)d (pounds)d poundsd (pounds)d

. Gaseous 810e Gaseous 810e

Corrosives 5,000 500 .. 5.000 500 .. - 1.000 100Liquetied (150) Liquefied (bO)

. . Gaseous 20g Gaseous 20g

Hwhly Toxic 10 (10) . 10 (10) . 3 (3)Liquefied (4) Liquefied (4)

Toxic 500 (500)
Gaseous 810

500 (500)
Gaseous sio

125 (125)Liquefied (150) Liquefied (150)

For SI: 1 cubic foot = 0.028 m3, 1 pound = 0.454 kg, 1 gallon = 3.785 L.
a. For use of control areas, see Section 414.2.
b. The aggregate quantity in use and storage shall not exceed the quantity listed for storage.
c. In retail and wholesale sales occupancies, the quantities of medicines, foodstuffs or consumer products, and cosmetics containing not more than 50 percent by

volume of water-miscible liquids and with the remainder of the solutions not being flammable, shall not be limited, provided that such materials are packaged
in individual containers not exceeding 1.3 gallons.

d. Maximum allowable quantities shall be increased 100 percent in buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance
with Section 903.3.1.1. Where Note e also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

e. Maximum allowable quantities shall be increased 100 percent where stored in approved storage cabinets, gas cabinets or exhausted enclosures as specified in
this code. Where Note d also applies, the increase for both notes shall be applied accumulatively.

f. For storage and display quantities in Group M and storage quantities in Group S occupancies complying with Section 4 14.2.5. see Tables 414.2.5(1) and
414.2.5 (2).

g. Allowed only where stored in approved exhausted gas cabinets or exhausted enclosures as specified in this code.
h. Quantities in parentheses indicate quantity units in parentheses at the head of each column.
i. For gallons of liquids, divide the amount in pounds by 10 in accordance with Section 414.1.5.1.

15. Stationar fitel cell power systems installed in
accordance with this code and the Mechanical
Code.

16. Capacitor energy storage systems in accordance
with this code.

17. Group B higher education laboratory occupancies
complying with Section 42$.

307.2 Hazardous materials. Hazardous materials in any
quantity shall conform to the requirements of this code,
including Section 414.

307.2.1 Storage of Class 1.4G (Class C, Common) fire
works. A permanent building used for the temporary stor
age of 1 .4G (Class C) fireworks, as authorized by a retail
sales permit under ORS 480.127, may be classified as
either a Group M, Group S-i or a detached Group U occu
pancy, provided:

1. The total amount of 1 .4G retail fireworks is less than
5,000 pounds (2268 kg) gross weight; or

2. Where the building is protected by an approved
automatic sprinkler system and the amount of I .4G
retail fireworks is less than 10,000 pounds (4536 kg)
gross weight.

307.3 High-hazard Group H-i. Buildings and structures
containing materials that pose a detonation hazard shall be
classified as Group H-i. Such materials shall include, but not
be limited to, the following:

Detonable pyrophoric materials

Explosives:

Division 1.1
Division 1.2

Division 1.3
Division 1.4
Division 1.5
Division 1.6

Organic peroxides, unclassified detonable

Oxidizers, Class 4

Unstable (reactive) materials, Class 3 detonable and Class 4

307.3.1 Occupancies containing explosives not classi
fied as H-i. The following occupancies containing explo
sive materials shall be classified as follows:

1. Division 1.3 explosive materials that are used and
maintained in a form where either confinement or
configuration will not elevate the hazard from a
mass fire to mass explosion hazard shall be allowed
in H-2 occupancies.

2. Articles, including articles packaged for shipment.
that are not regulated as a Division 1.4 explosive
under Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, firearms and
Explosives regulations, or unpackaged articles used
in process operations that do not propagate a detona
tion or deflagration between articles shall be
allowed in H-3 occupancies.

307.4 High-hazard Group H-2. Buildings and structures
containing materials that pose a deflagration hazard or a haz
ard from accelerated burning shall be classified as Group H-
2. Such materials shall include, but not be limited to, the fol
lowing:

Class I. II or lilA flammable or combustible liquids that are
used or stored in normally open containers or systems, or
in closed containers or systems pressurized at more than
15 pounds per square inch gauge (103.4 kPa).

64 2079 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE

53



OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

Combustible dusts where manufactured, generated or used
in such a manner that the concentration and conditions
create a fire or explosion hazard based on information
prepared in accordance with Section 414.1.3.

Cryogenic fluids, flammable.
Flammable gases.
Organic peroxides, Class I.
Oxidizers, Class 3, that are used or stored in normally

open containers or systems, or in closed containers or
systems pressurized at more than 15 pounds per square
inch gauge (103 kPa).

Pyrophoric liquids, solids and gases, nondetonable.
Unstable (reactive) materials, Class 3, nondetonable.
Water-reactive materials, Class 3.

307.5 High-hazard Group H-3. Buildings and structures
containing materials that readily support combustion or that
pose a physical hazard shall be classified as Group H-3. Such
materials shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Class I, II or lilA flammable or combustible liquids that
are used or stored in normally closed containers or
systems pressurized at 15 pounds per square inch gauge
(103.4 kPa) or less.

Combustible fibers, other than densely packed baled
cotton, where manufactured, generated or used in such a
manner that the concentration and conditions create a
fire or explosion hazard based on information prepared
in accordance with Section 414.1.3.

Consumer fireworks, l.4G (Class C, Common)
Cryogenic fluids, oxidizing
Flammable solids
Organic peroxides, Class II and III
Oxidizers, Class 2
Oxidizers, Class 3, that are used or stored in normally

closed containers or systems pressurized at 15 pounds
per square inch gauge (103 kPa) or less

Oxidizing gases
Unstable (reactive) materials, Class 2
Water-reactive materials, Class 2

307.6 High-hazard Group H-4. Buildings and structures
containing materials that are health hazards shall be classified
as Group H-4. Such materials shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

Corrosives
Highly toxic materials
Toxic matenals

307.7 High-hazard Group 11-5. Semiconductor fabrication
facilities and comparable research and development areas in
which hazardous production materials (RPM) are used and
the aggregate quantity of materials is in excess of those
listed in Tables 307.1(1) and 307.1(2) shall be classified as
Group H-S. Such facilities and areas shall be designed and
constructed in accordance with Section 415.11.

307.8 Multiple hazards. Buildings and structures containing
a material or materials representing hazards that are classified
in one or more of Groups H-i, H-2, H-3 and H-4 shall con
form to the code requirements for each of the occupancies so
classified.

SECTION 308
INSTITUTIONAL GROUP I

308.1 Institutional Group I. Institutional Group I occupancy
includes, among others, the use of a building or structure, or a
portion thereof, in which care or supervision is provided to
persons who are or are not capable of self-preservation with
out physical assistance or in which persons are detained for
penal or correctional purposes or in which the liberty of the
occupants is restricted. Institutional occupancies shall be
classified as Group 1-1, 1-2, 1-3 or 1-4.

308.2 Institutional Group I-i. Institutional Group 1-1 occu
pancy shall include buildings, structures or portions thereof
for more than 16 persons, excluding staff, who reside on a 24-
hour basis in a supervised environment and receive custodial
care. Buildings of Group I-I shall be classified as one of the
occupancy conditions specified in Section 308.2.1 or 308.2.2.

308.2.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which all persons receiving custodial
care who, without any assistance, are capable of respond
ing to an emergency situation to complete building evacu
ation.

This group shall include, but not be limited to, the fol
lowing:

Congregate living facilities
Halfway houses
Social rehabilitation facilities

308.2.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings subject to licensure by the Oregon
Department of Human Services in which there are any per
sons receiving custodial care who require limited verbal or
physical assistance while responding to an emergency sit
uation to complete building evacuation. This group shall
include, but not be limited to, the following:

Alcohol and drug centers
Assisted living facilities with or without a Memory

Care Endorsement
Residential care facilities with or without a Memory

Care Endorsement
Residential treatment facilities
Group homes and facilities

308.2.3 Six to 16 persons receiving custodial care. A
facility housing not fewer than six and not more than 16
persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as
Group R-4.

308.2.4 Five or fewer persons receiving custodial care.
A facility with five or fewer persons receiving custodial
care shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with
the Residential Code provided an automatic sprinkler sys
tem is installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3 or
with Appendix T of the Residential Code.

308.3 Institutional Group 1-2. Institutional Group 1-2 occu
pancy shall include buildings and structures used for medical
care on a 24-hour basis for more than five persons who are
incapable of self-preservation. This group shall include, but
not be limited to, the following:

Foster care facilities
Detoxification facilities

I I

2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE 65

54



OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION AND USE

Hospitals
Nursing homes
Psychiatric hospitals

308.3.1 Occupancy conditions. Buildings of Group 1-2
shall be classified as one of the occupancy conditions
specified in Section 308.3.1.1 or 308.3.1.2.

308.3.1.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include facilities that provide nursing and medical care
but do not provide emergency care, surgery, obstetrics
or in-patient stabilization units for psychiatric or detox
ification, including but not limited to nursing homes
and foster care facilities.

308.3.1.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include facilities that provide nursing and medical care
and could provide emergency care, surgery, obstetrics
or in-patient stabilization units for psychiatric or detox
ification, including but not limited to hospitals.

308.3.2 Five or fewer persons receiving medical care. A
facility with five or fewer persons receiving medical care
shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with the
Resideiz tia 1 Code provided an automatic sprinkler system
is installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.3 or with
Appendix T of the Residential Code.

308.4 Institutional Group 1-3. Institutional Group 1-3
occupancy shall include buildings and structures that are
inhabited by more than five persons who are under
restraint or security. A Group 1-3 facility is occupied by
persons who are generally incapable of selJpreser’ation
due to security measures not under the occupants’ control.
This group shall incitide, but not be limited to, the follow-
ing:

Correctional centers
Detention centers
Jails
Prerelease centers
Prisons
Reformatories

Buildings of Group 1-3 shall be classified as one of the
occupancy conditions specified in Sections 308.4.1 through
308.4.5 (see Section 408.1).

308.4.1 Condition 1. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed from
sleeping areas, and other spaces where access or occu
pancy is permitted, to the exterior via means of egress
without restraint. A Condition 1 facility is permitted to be
constructed as Group R.

308.4.2 Condition 2. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed from
sleeping areas and any other occupied smoke compartment
to one or more other smoke compartments. Egress to the
exterior is impeded by locked exits.

308.4.3 Condition 3. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is allowed
within individual smoke compartments, such as within a
residential unit comprised of individual sleeping units and
group activity spaces, where egress is impeded by remote-

controlled release of nzeans of egress from such a smoke
compartment to another smoke compartment. (
308.4.4 Condition 4. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is restricted
from an occupied space. Remote-controlled release is pro
vided to permit movement from sleeping units, activity
spaces and other occupied areas within the smoke corn
partrnen t to other smoke compartments.

308.4.5 Condition 5. This occupancy condition shall
include buildings in which free movement is restricted
from an occupied space. Staff-controlled manual release is
provided to permit movement from sleeping units, activity
spaces and other occupied areas within the smoke corn
partment to other smoke compartments.

308.5 Institutional Group 1-4, day care facilities. Institu
tional Group 1-4 occupancy shall include buildings and struc
tures occupied by more than five persons of any age who
receive custodial care for fewer than 24 hours per day by per
sons other than parents or guardians, relatives by blood, mar
riage or adoption, and in a place other than the home of the
person cared for. This group shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

Adult day care
Child day care

308.5.1 Classification as Group E. A child day care facil
ity that provides care for more than five but not more than
100 children 21/2 years or less of age, where the rooms in
which the children are cared for are located on a level of
exit discharge serving such rooms and each of these child
care rooms has an exit door directly to the exterior, shall
be classified as Group E.

308.5.2 Within a place of religious worship. Rooms and
spaces within places of religious worship providing such
care during religious functions shall be classified as part of
the primary occupancy.

308.5.3 Five or fewer persons receiving care. A facility
having five or fewer persons receiving custodial care shall
be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

308.5.4 five or fewer persons receiving care in a dwell
ing unit. A facility such as the above within a dwelling
unit and having five or fewer persons receiving citstodial
care shall be classified as a Group R-3 occupancy or shall
comply with the Residential Code.

SECTION 309
MERCANTILE GROUP M

309.1 Mercantile Group M. Mercantile Group M occupancy
includes, among others, the use of a building or structure or a
portion thereof for the display and sale of merchandise, and
involves stocks of goods, wares or merchandise incidental to
such purposes and accessible to the public. Mercantile occu
pancies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Department stores
Drug stores
Markets
Greenhouses for display and sale of plants that provide

public access.

t

I

66 2019 OREGON STRUCTURAL SPECIALTY CODE

55



80th Oregon Legislative Assembly — 2020 Regular Session

HB 4119 A STAFF MEASURE SUMMARY Carrier: Rep. Gomberg, Rep.
Smith DB

House Committee On Natural Resources

Action Date: 02/13/20
Action: Do pass with amendments. (Printed A-Eng.)

Vote: 6-1-0-0
Yeas: 6 - Barreto, Lively, Reardon, Smith DB, Sprenger, Witt
Nays: 1-Gorsek

Fiscal: Has minimal fiscal impact
Revenue: No revenue impact

Prepared By: Laura Kentnesse, LPRO Analyst

Meeting Dates: 2/6, 2/13

WHAT THE MEASURE DOES:

Imposes American Society of Civil Engineers 7-16 (ASCE 7-16) tsunami design standards on Risk Category Ill and IV

buildings and structures. Allows local government to impose vertical evacuation standards for new or existing

buildings and structures as part of a local tsunami evacuation plan. Allows the Department of Consumer and

Business Services to require that sites for new structures be evaluated for vulnerability to seismic geologic hazards

if the structures are designated as Risk Category Ill or IV under ASCE 7-16. Requires a developer of a proposed Risk

Category Ill or IV public building to obtain a tsunami impact determination and risk mitigation suggestions from
the State Department of Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI). Requires DOGAMI to respond to the

developer within 45 days of receiving the request, and to report to the Legislative Assembly annually regarding
requests, determinations, and suggestions. Makes the ASCE 7-16 tsunami design standard requirement and the
DOGAMI consultation requirement applicable to buildings receiving an initial building permit on or after July 1,
2021.

ISSUES DISCUSSED:
• House Bill 3309 (2019), which allowed for development of essential facilities and special occupancy facilities in

tsunami inundation zones

• American Society of Civil Engineers 7-16 (ASCE 7-16) standards have been adopted by California, Washington,
Alaska, and Hawaii

• Some coastal communities do not have upland options for development
• Local government choice whether to construct these facilities in tsunami inundation zones
• ASCE 7-16 design standards for vertical evacuation refuge structures are not required under this measure

EFFECT OF AMENDMENT:

Replaces structural specialty code “contrary standard” with “other standards” in the notwithstanding clause for
tsunami design standard requirements.

BACKGROUND:

The American Society of Civil Engineers 7-16 (ASCE 7-16) is a publication jointly produced by ASCE and the

Structural Engineering Institute that describes minimum tsunami and earthquake design standards for certain
buildings and structures. Under the ASCE 7-16, Risk Category III buildings include buildings that would pose a

substantial hazard to human life in the event of failure, such as public assembly buildings, education institutions,
residential care facilities, power-generating stations, water and wastewater treatment facilities, certain public

utility facilities, and any building with more than 5,000 people. Risk Category IV buildings are essential facilities
such as surgery or emergency treatment facilities; fire, rescue, ambulance, and police stations; emergency vehicle

garages; designated earthquake, hurricane, or other emergency shelters; designated emergency preparedness,

This summary has not been adopted or officially endorsed by action of the committee. 1 of 2

56



HE 4119 A STAFF MEASURE SUMMARY

communications, and operations centers for emergency response; power-generating stations; buildings
containing quantities of highly toxic materials; aviation control towers, air traffic control centers, and emergency
aircraft hangars; buildings with critical national defense functions; and water storage facilities and pump
structures for fire suppression.

In 1995, the legislature established a moratorium on constructing new essential buildings, like schools and
hospitals, in the tsunami inundation zone. In 2019, the legislature adopted House Bill 3309, which repealed that
prohibition, effective January 1, 2020. The State Building Code does not currently include tsunami resilient design
provisions for new facilities that may be built in the tsunami inundation zone in 2020 and beyond.

House Bill 4119-A would impose ASCE 7-16 tsunami design standards on certain buildings and structures, allow
the Department of Consumer and Business Services to require that sites for certain new structures be evaluated
for seismic vulnerability, and require a developer of a proposed high-risk public building to obtain a tsunami
impact determination and risk mitigation suggestions from DOGAMI, effective July 1, 2021.

This Summary has not been adopted or officially endorsed by action of the committee. 2 of 2

57



80th OREGON LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY—2020 Regular Session

A-Engrossed

House Bill 4119
Ordered by the House February 17

Including House Amendments dated February 17

Sponsored by Representative GOMBERG, Senator ROBLAN, Representative SMITH DB; Representatives EVANS,
MITCHELL (Presession filed.)

SUMMARY

The following summary is not prepared by the sponsors of the measure and is not a part of the body thereof subject
to consideration by the Legislative Assembly. It is an editor’s brief statement of the essential features of the
measure.

Imposes tsunami design standards for certain buildings and other structures. Allows local gov
ernment to impose vertical evacuation standards for new or existing buildings and other structures
as part of local tsunami evacuation plan.

Requires that sites for new structures be evaluated for vulnerability to seismic geologic hazards
if stru.ctures are essential facilities, hazardous facilities, major structures or special occupancy
structures or are designated as having specified tsunami risk for design.

Requires developer of building owned by public body and designated as having specified tsunami
risk for design to obtain determination and suggestions from State Department of Geology and
Mineral Industries. Requires department to report annually regarding requests, determinations and
suggestions.

Makes tsunami design standards, site review requirement and department determination and
suggestion requirement applicable to buildings receiving initial building permit on or after July 1,
2021.

1 A BILL FOR AN ACT

2 Relating to tsunami risk; creating new provisions; and amending ORS 455.447.

3 Be It Enacted by the People of the State of Oregon:

4 SECTION 1. (1) As used in this section:

5 (a) “ASCE” means the American Society of Civil Engineers.

6 (b) “ASCE 7-16” means ASCE Minimum Design Loads and Associated Criteria for

7 Buildings and Other Structures (2016 Edition).

8 (2) Notwithstanding any other standards under the structural specialty code, the follow-

9 ing must be designed to meet or exceed the tsunami loads and effects design standards ap

10 plicable under chapter 6 of ASCE 7-16:

11 (a) Risk Category III buildings and structures, as defined in chapter 1, section 1.5.1 of

12 ASCE 7-16. Buildings and other structures described in this paragraph must be designated

13 as Tsunami Risk Category III for design.

14 (b) Risk Category IV buildings and structures, as defined in chapter 1, section 1.5.1 of

15 ASCE 7-16. Buildings and other structures described in this paragraph must be designated

16 as Tsunami Risk Category IV for design.

17 (3) This section does not make any buildings or other structures subject under the state

18 building code to ASCE 7-16 standards for refuge structures for vertical evacuation.

19 SECTION 2. (1) As used in this section:

20 (a) “ASCE” means the American Society of Civil Engineers.

21 (5) “ASCE 7-16” means ASCE Minimum Design Loads and Associated Criteria for

NOTE: Matter in boldfaced type in an amended section is new; matter [itatie and bracketed is existing law to be omitted.
New sections are in boldfaced type.

LC 33

58



A-Eng. HB 4119

1 Buildings and Other Structures (2016 Edition)

2 (2) The state building code does not impose, or apply to, vertical evacuation planning and

3 design requirements. A local government may adopt ASCE 7-16 standards for refuge struc

4 tures for vertical evacuation for buildings or other structures as part of a local tsunami plan.

5 A local government may apply standards adopted as provided in this subsection to all or part

6 of new or existing buildings or structures within the jurisdiction of the local government.

7 SECTION 3. ORS 455.447 is amended to read:

8 455.447. (1) As used in this section, unless the context requires otherwise:

9 (a) “Essential facility” means:

10 (A) Hospitals and other medical facilities having surgery and emergency treatment areas;

11 (B) Fire and police stations;

12 (C) Tanks or other structures containing, housing or supporting water or fire-suppression mate-

13 rials or equipment required for the protection of essential or hazardous facilities or special occu

14 pancy structures;

15 (D) Emergency vehicle shelters and garages;

16 (E) Structures and equipment in emergency-preparedness centers;

17 (F) Standby power generating equipment for essential facilities; and

18 (G) Structures and equipment in government communication centers and other facilities required

19 for emergency response.

20 (b) “Hazardous facility” means structures housing, supporting or containing sufficient quantities

21 of toxic or explosive substances to be of danger to the safety of the public if released.

22 (c) “Major structure” means a building over six stories in height with an aggregate floor area

23 of 60,000 square feet or more, every building over 10 stories in height and parking structures as

24 determined by Department of Consumer and Business Services rule.

25 (d) “Seismic hazard” means a geologic condition that is a potential danger to life and property

26 that includes but is not limited to earthquake, landslide, liquefaction, tsunami inundation, fault dis

27 placement, and subsidence.

28 (e) “Special occupancy structure” means:

29 (A) Covered structures whose primary occupancy is public assembly with a capacity greater

30 than 300 persons;

31 (B) Buildings with a capacity greater than 250 individuals for every public, private or parochial

32 school through secondary level or child care centers;

33 (C) Buildings for colleges or adult education schools with a capacity greater than 500 persons;

34 (D) Medical facilities with 50 or more resident, incapacitated patients not included in subpara

35 graphs (A) to (C) of this paragraph;

36 (E) Jails and detention facilities; and

37 (F) All structures and occupancies with a capacity greater than 5,000 persons.

38 (2) The Department of Consumer and Business Services shall consult with the Seismic Safety

39 Policy Advisory Commission and the State Department of Geology and Mineral Industries prior to

40 adopting rules. Thereafter, the Department of Consumer and Business Services may adopt rules as

41 set forth in ORS 183.325 to 183.410 to amend the state building code to:

42 (a) Require new building sites [for essential facilities, hazardous facilities, major structures and

43 special occupancy structures] to be evaluated on a site specific basis for vulnerability to seismic

44 geologic hazards if the sites are for structures that are:

45 (A) Essential facilities, hazardous facilities, major structures or special occupancy

[2]

59



A-Eng. HB 4119

1 structures; or

2 (B) Designated under section 1 of this 2020 Act as Tsunami Risk Category III or W for

3 design.

4 (b) Require a program for the installation of strong motions accelerographs in or near selected

5 major buildings.

6 (c) Provide for the review of geologic and engineering reports for seismic design of new

7 buildings of large size, high occupancy or critical use.

8 (d) Provide for filing of noninterpretive seismic data from site evaluation in a manner accessible

9 to the public.

10 (3) For the purpose of defraying the cost of applying the regulations in subsection (2) of this

11 section, there is hereby imposed a surcharge in the amount of one percent of the total fees collected

12 under the structural and mechanical specialty codes for essential facilities, hazardous facilities,

13 major structures and special occupancy structures, which fees are retained by the jurisdiction en

14 forcing the particular specialty code as provided in ORS 455.150 or enforcing a building inspection

15 program under ORS 455.148.

16 [(4) Developers of new essential facilities, hazardous facilities, major structures and special occu

17 pancy structures that are located in an identified tsunami inundation zone, as described in ORS

18 455.446 (2), shalt consult with the State Department of Geology and Mineral Industries for assistance

19 in determining the impact of possible tsunamis on the proposed development and for assistance in pre

20 paring methods to mitigate risk at the site of a potential tsunami. Consultation must take place prior

21 to submittal of design plans to the building official for final approval.]

22 (4) A developer of a proposed building owned by a public body as defined in ORS 174.109

23 and designated under section 1 of this 2020 Act as Tsunami Risk Category III or IV for design

24 shall request that the State Department of Geology and Mineral Industries determine the

25 impact of possible tsunamis on the proposed building and suggest methods to mitigate risk

26 at the building site of a potential tsunami. The developer must make the request for the

27 determination and suggestions prior to submitting the building design plans to the building

28 official for final approval. The State Department of Geology and Mineral Industries shall send

29 the determination and suggestions to a developer no later than 45 days after receiving a re

30 quest.

31 SECTION 4. The State Department of Geology and Mineral Industries shall report re

32 garding requests, determinations and suggestions made under ORS 455.447 (4), to an interim

33 committee of the Legislative Assembly related to general government in the manner pro

34 vided by ORS 192.245, no later than September 15 of each year.

35 SECTION 5. Section 1 of this 2020 Act, and the amendments to ORS 455.447 by section 3

36 of this 2020 Act, apply to buildings for which a building permit is initially issued on or after

37 July 1, 2021.

38

[3]

60



CHAPTER 3:
Comprehensive Plan Provisions

LVACUATIdN
ROUI[

Prepared by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development April 2015 17

61



1 8 April 201 5 Preparing for a Caseadia Subduetion Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon Coastal Communities

62



Chapter 3: Comprehensive Plan Provisions

This Chapter includes a set of sample (model) plan policies (Section 3.1) related to
lip: In prepanng forthis effort and a sample (model) tsunami related text section that can be included tsunami resilience,

within the Goal 7 (Natural Hazards) section of the community’s comprehensive plan. update the Natural
The comprehensive plan text section can be used as it is or modified and tailored to Hazards (Statewide
better meet the needs of a specific community. The comprehensive set of draft plan Goal 7) section of
policies can be reviewed, tailored, and used to support development code provisions your Comprehensive
identified for community use. Plan. Goal 7

indicates that local
3.1 Sample Comprehensive Plan Natural Hazards Chapter Text governments shall

adopt comprehensive
This section includes sample tsunami related text that can be included as a tsunami- plans (inventories,
oriented subsection within the Goal 7 (Natural Hazards) section of the local policies and
comprehensive plan. Its intent is to provide general information related to community implementing
tsunami risk, preface the applicable tsunami plan policies, and support the measures) to reduce
community’s land use resilience program. This sample comprehensive plan text risk to people and
subsection can be used as it is or modified and tailored to meet the needs of a specific property from natural

hazards. Naturalcommunity. Sample text follows.
hazards for purposes
of this goal are:

0.0 Tsunami floods (coastal and
riverine’), landslides,0.01 Description of the Hazard: The Oregon coast is well known for its spectacular
earthquakes and

scenery and natural resources. However, because the coast lies at the interface related hazards
between land and the Pacific Ocean, it also is a zone of great instability and tsunamis, coastal
vulnerability. Over time, we have gained a greater awareness of our coast’s erosion, and
geologic hazards and its risks to people and property. wildfires.

Coastal Oregon is not only vulnerable to chronic coastal hazards such as coast erosion
from winter storms and sea level rise, but it is also subject to the potentially
catastrophic effects of a Cascadia earthquake event and related tsunami. These types
of powerful and devastating earthquakes of magnitude 9+ are generated at the
Cascadia Subduction Zone where the eastward-moving Juan de Fuca tectonic plate
dives under the westward-moving North American plate just off the Oregon coast.
These large earthquakes will occur under the ocean just offshore of our coast and will
produce extremely destructive tsunamis that can strike the coast 15 and 20 minutes
after the earthquake, leaving devastation in their path. It is likely that in most Oregon
coast communities, including [insert jurisdiction name], the only warning of an
approaching tsunami will be the earthquake itself.

The geologic record shows that the largest of these large Cascadia Subduction Zone
earthquakes and accompanying tsunamis occur about every 500 years, plus or
minus 200 years. The last such earthquake and tsunami occurred over 300 years
ago, on the evening of January 2 6th, 1700. This means that we are in the time
window where a destructive Cascadia earthquake and tsunami could occur and the
probability of that occurrence will continue to increase over time. This time the
stakes are much higher as the great earthquake and catastrophic tsunami could

Prepared by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development April 2f)t 5 9 9

63



occur when tens of thousands of Oregonians and visitors are enjoying coastal
beaches and towns. To address this increasing risk and substantially increase
resilience within our community, the [city/county] is proactively addressing
tsunami preparedness and mitigation within its land use program. Land use
planning that addresses tsunami risk is an essential tool to help increase resilience
to a potentially catastrophic tsunami event within [City/County].

0.02 Tsunami Hazard Maps: The Department of Geology and Mineral Industries
(DOGAMI) have developed Tsunami Inundation Maps (TIMs) which provide the
essential information for defining tsunami risk along the Oregon coast. The [name of
city of county] has adopted the TIM’s applicable to the [city/county], and its urban
growth boundary, as a part of its comprehensive plan hazard inventory. These maps
are also referenced within this natural hazards element of the comprehensive plan and
are the basis for establishing the boundaries of the [City’s/County’s] Tsunami Hazard
Overlay zone. The TIMs are referenced in the tsunami related plan policies and within
the overlay zone for purposes of differentiating between areas of higher versus lower
risk.

0.03 Tsunami Related Policies: The [City/County] has adopted a set of
comprehensive plan policies related to tsunami preparedness and recovery that are
included within this and other applicable sections of the comprehensive plan. These
policies have been developed to address the resilience goals of the [city/county].
They are designed to support the [city’s/county’s] resilience efforts within the
comprehensive plan and implementing codes.

0.04 Zoning: Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone (THO): [City/CountyJ has adopted an
overlay zone which utilizes the applicable DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Maps
(TIMs). The overlay zone includes all areas identified as subject to inundation by
the largest (XXL) local source tsunami event which ensures that life/safely and
evacuation route planning and development are adequately addressed. Other land
use resilience strategies and requirements included within the overlay zone, which
are not life safety or evacuation related, are applied within a subset of the overlay
to smaller inundation scenario areas. These measures are included within the
overlay zone provisions and reflect the community’s risk tolerance, application of
mitigation measures, and ORS 455.446-447 requirements. The overlay zone
boundary has been adopted as an amendment to the official zoning map for the
[City/County].

Tip: Sample 0.05 Evacuation Route Plan Maps: The [City/County], as part of its land use
policies should program for tsunami preparedness has also adopted a comprehensive evacuation
be easily route plan. The evacuation route plan identifies designated evacuation routes,
adjusted to fit assembly areas and other components of the local evacuation system. The plan is
your a key component of the [city’s/county’s] efforts to reduce risk to life safety by
community s planning for a comprehensive evacuation system and developing the detailed
plan. information necessary to establish land use requirements to implement evacuation

measures and improvements. This plan and associated map(s) have been
incorporated into the [City/County] [comprehensive plan natural hazard
element/transportation system plan].

20 April 2015 I Preparing for a Cascadia Subduction Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon Coastal Communities

64



3.2 Sample Comprehensive Plan Tsunami Related Policies

This section includes a set of sample comprehensive plan policies related to tsunami
preparedness and recovery that can be included within the Goal 7 (Natural Hazards)
section, and other applicable sections of the community’s comprehensive plan. The
sample comprehensive plan policies should be used and tailored to meet the needs of a
specific community. They are designed to be used with and support the sample
development code provisions and/or other strategies within this Land Use Guide. The
sample policies are as indicated below.

Goal 7: Areas Subject to Natural Hazards
General Policies

To protect life, minimize damage and facilitate rapid recovery from a local source
Cascadia Subduction Zone earthquake and tsunami, the [City/County] will:
1. Support tsunami preparedness and related resilience efforts.
2. Take reasonable measures to protect life and property to the fullest extent feasible,

from the impact of a local source Cascadia tsunami.
3. Use the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI)

Tsunami Inundation Maps applicable to [City/County] to develop tsunami
hazard resiliency measures.

4. Adopt a Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone for identified tsunami hazard areas to
implement land use measures addressing tsunami risk.

5. Enact design or performance implementing code components in identified
tsunami hazard areas.

6. Implement land division provisions to further tsunami preparedness and
related resilience efforts.

7. Consider potential land subsidence projections to plan for post Cascadia
event earthquake and tsunami redevelopment.

8. Require a tsunami hazard acknowledgement and disclosure statement for
new development in tsunami hazard areas.

9. Identify and secure the use of appropriate land above a tsunami inundation
zone for temporary housing, business and community functions post event

10. As part of a comprehensive pre-disaster land use planning effort, consistent with
applicable statewide planning goals, identify appropriate locations above the
tsunami inundation for relocation of housing, business and community functions
post event. (Note: Section 7.2 of this guide addresses this type of comprehensive
pre-disaster land use planning effort)

Evacuation Policy Concepts

To facilitate the orderly and expedient evacuation of residents and visitors in a
tsunami event, the [City/County] will:
1. Adopt a tsunami evacuation route plan that identifies current and projected

evacuation needs, designates routes and assembly areas, establishes system
standards, and identifies needed improvements to the local evacuation system.

Prepared by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development April 201 5 2 1

65



2. Identify and secure the use of appropriate land above a tsunami inundation
zone for evacuation, assembly, and emergency response.

3. Ensure zoning allows for adequate storage and shelter facilities.
4. Provide development or other incentives to property owners that donate

land for evacuation routes, assembly areas, and potential shelters.
5. Require needed evacuation route improvements, including improvements to

route demarcation (way finding in all weather and lighting conditions),
vegetation management, for new development and substantial redevelopment in
tsunami hazard areas.

6. Work with neighboring jurisdictions to identify inter-jurisdictional evacuation
routes and assembly areas where necessary.

7. Provide for the development of vertical evacuation structures in areas where
reaching high ground is impractical.

8. Evaluate multi-use paths and transportation policies for tsunami evacuation
route planning.

9. Encourage suitable structures to incorporate vertical evacuation capacity in areas
where evacuation to high ground is impractical.

10. Install signs to clearly mark evacuation routes and implement other way finding
technologies (e.g., painting on pavement, power poles and other prominent
features) to ensure that routes can be easily followed day or night and in all
weather conditions.

11. Prepare informational materials related to tsunami evacuation routes and make

Tip: ORS them easily available to the public.

455.446-447 Policies Related to Reducing Development Risk in High Tsunami Risk Areas
identifies
minimum The [City/County] will:

restrictions. 1. Prohibit comprehensive plan or zone map amendments that would result in
Jurisdictions increased residential densities or more intensive uses in tsunami hazard areas
should consider unless adequate mitigation is implemented. Mitigation measures should focus on
limiting other life safety and tsunami resistant structure design and construction.
uses and/or 2. Encourage open space, public and private recreation and other minimally
extending developed uses within the tsunami inundation zone area.
restrictions for 3. Prohibit the development of those essential facilities and special occupancy
some uses to structures identified in ORS 455.446 and ORS 455.447 within the [select L XL
other risk zones. or XXL tsunami inundation area as determined by the community] tsunami

inundation area.

Note: Currently, the area within which the limitation on the placement of new
essential facilities and special occupancy structures is defined by the inundation
line specified in ORS 45 5.446. The adoption of a new line for purposes of ORS
45 5.446 and ORS 45 5.447, based on the new TIMs, is being considered by the
DOGAMI governing board. The jurisdiction can be more restrictive if it
chooses.

22 April 201 5 I Preparing for a Cascadia Subduction Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon Coastal Communities

66



4. Consider the use of transferrable development credits as authorized by ORS 94-
531-94.538 to facilitate development outside of tsunami inundation zones.

5. Encourage, through incentives, building techniques that address tsunami peak
hydraulic forces which will minimize impacts and increase the likelihood that
structures will remain in place.

6. Protect and enhance existing dune features and coastal vegetation to promote
natural buffers and reduce erosion. Tip: Dune

protection is a
Hazard Mitigation Planning coastal best

The [City/County] will: practice and may
aid long- term1. Address tsunami hazards and associated resilience strategies within the
resiliency butcommunity s FEMA approved hazard mitigation plan.
should not be

2. Incorporate and adopt relevant sections of the hazard mitigation plan by reference relied on to
into the comprehensive plan. protect against

3. Ensure hazard mitigation plan action items related to land use are locally generated
implemented through the comprehensive plan and implementing tsunami events.
ordinances.

Tsunami Awareness Education and Outreach

The [City/County] will:
1. Encourage and support tsunami education and outreach, training, and practice.
2. Implement a comprehensive and ongoing tsunami preparedness community

education and outreach program. (Note: Some communities have utilized
Community Emergency Response Teams (CERT) or CERT-like organizations as
a part of that ongoing community education and outreach. See also Chapter 6.10.

3. Collaborate with local, state and federal planners and emergency managers for the
purpose of developing a culture of preparedness supporting evacuation route
planning and other land use measures that minimize risk and maximize resilience
from tsunami events.

Debris Management

The [City/County] will:
1. Identify and work to secure the use of suitable areas within the Tsunami

Inundation Zone for short and long-term, post-disaster debris storage, sorting and
management.

2. Work with other public and private entities to establish mutual aid agreements for
post- disaster debris removal and otherwise plan for needed heavy equipment in
areas which may become isolated due to earthquake and tsunami damage.

Hazardous Materials

The [City/County] will:
1. Limit or prohibit new hazardous facilities as defined in ORS 455.447 within

tsunami inundation zones. Where limiting or prohibiting such facilities is not
practical, require adequate mitigation measures consistent with state and federal
requirements.

Prepared by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development April 2015 23

67



Goal 11: Public facility and Services
The [City/County] will:
1. Consider and address tsunami risks and evacuation routes and signage when

planning, developing, improving, or replacing public facilities and services.
2. Update public facility plans to plan, fund, and locate future facilities outside

of the tsunami inundation zone, whenever possible.

Goal 12: Transportation

The [City/County] will:
1. Develop multi-use paths that both enhance community livability and serve as

tsunami evacuation routes.
2. Coordinate evacuation route and signage planning in conjunction with

existing or proposed transportation system plan pedestrian and bicycle route
planning efforts.

3. Locate new transportation facilities outside the tsunami inundation zones
where feasible.

4. Where feasible design and construct new transportation facilities to withstand a
Cascadia event earthquake and be resistant to the associated tsunami.

Goal 14: Urbanization
The [City/County] will:
1. Limit the allowable uses on property in the tsunami hazard area vacated as

the result of an urban growth boundary expansion to relocate existing
development. Such limitations shall include permitting only low risk uses, or
requiring uses which implement adequate protection or mitigation measures

Tip: A for seismic and tsunami hazards.
DOGAMI . . ... .

ad r or
2. Restrict the development of lodging facilities and higher density residential

. housing in tsunami inundation zones or require the implementation of protectivecommittee may
measures.recommend the . . . . . .

adoption of the 3. Plan for the location or relocation of critical facilities outside of tsunami

“Large” scenario hazard area when conducting the land needs analysis.

for application 4. Include pre- and post-tsunami disaster planning as part of urban reserve
of the ORS 455 planning processes.
development
restrictions. This 3.3 Map Amendments
recommendation .

will be The comprehensive plan and development code text amendments developed using this
considered by Land Use Guide will need to be accompanied by associated map amendments. The

the DOGAMI following maps should be adopted or otherwise incorporated into the appropriate

Governing elements of the local comprehensive plan and implementing regulations:

Board who will a. DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Map (TIM): Communities should adopt the map,
make the final or maps in the DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Map (TIM) Series applicable to
determination, their jurisdiction as a part of the comprehensive plan inventory, as they provide

the essential information for defining tsunami risk. The TIMs include five
inundation scenario areas including small,

24 April 2015 I Preparing for a Cascadia Subduction Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon Coastal Communities

68



medium, large, extra-large, and extra extra-large tsunami events. The TIMs will
typically be referenced in the natural hazards element of the comprehensive plan, Tip: In adopting
and will also be used as the basis for establishing the boundaries of a Tsunami the applicable

Hazard Overlay zone. The TIMs may also be referenced in plan policies and/or TIMs,

the overlay zone for purposes of differentiating between areas of higher versus communities

lower risk. For example, the official ORS 455 tsunami inundation zone (which is should identify

currently being considered for updating based on the current TIMs), will identify and make
reference to thethe area to which ORS 455 development restnctions will apply.

b. Tsunami Hazard Overlay Zone Map (THO): The overlay zone map(s) should be
developed using the applicable DOGAMI Tsunami Inundation Maps or TIMs. In date of the map
developing the overlay map it is recommended that the overlay area include all for their
five inundation scenarios identified on the TIMs (S, M, L, XL, and XXL) which community.
would ensure that life/safety and evacuation route planning and development are
adequately addressed. Other land use resilience strategies and requirements
included within the overlay zone, which are not life safety or evacuation related,
may be applied within a subset of the overlay to smaller inundation scenario
areas subject to the community’s risk tolerance, application of mitigation
measures, and ORS 455.446-447 requirements. The map(s) should be adopted in
the form of an amendment to the official zoning map for the community.
A community may also coordinate with DOGAMI to develop water depth
mapping associated with various tsunami inundation scenarios found on the
TIMs which could be used to further define or clarify areas where land use
provisions would apply.

c. Evacuation Route Plan Maps: The Evacuation Route Plan will typically include a
map or maps that identify designated evacuation routes, assembly areas and other
components of the local evacuation system. This map would be included in the
adoption of the overall Evacuation Route Plan. The Evacuation Route Plan should,
in turn, be incorporated into the community’s comprehensive plan or
transportation system plan, as appropriate.

Prepared by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development April 2015 25

69



26 April 2015 Preparing for a Caseadia Subduction Zone Tsunami: A Land Use Guide for Oregon Coastal Communities

70



City of Newport

Memorandum

Community Development
Department

To: Planning Commission/Commission Advisory Committee -

From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Direc\

Re: Draft Amendments to the Storm Drainage Element of the Newport
Comprehensive Plan

Enclosed is a final draft of proposed changes to the Storm Drainage Element of the
Newport Comprehensive Plan. Statewide Planning Goal 11 addresses public facilities
planning, and that goal is implemented in OAR Chapter 660, Division 11. The
administrative rule calls for certain elements of public facilities plans to be adopted
into a Comprehensive Plan, namely a list of the identified projects (OAR 660-011-
0045). System Development Charge eligible capital projects should also be identified
in the project list. The consulting firm, Civil West Engineering Services, completed a
Stormwater Master Plan for the City of Newport in October of 2016, and we are
belatedly adding its projects and recommendations into the Comprehensive Plan.

The Planning Commission reviewed key elements of the master plan at a February
26, 2018 work session and provided comment on an initial draft of the Comprehensive
Plan Element, and recommended policies, on March 12, 2018. Acopyofthe minutes
from the March 2018 work session are enclosed. This current draft responds to issues
raised by Commission and Advisory Committee members at the time. Language has
been clarified and a new Policy 5 has been added under Goal 1 related to the
management of stormwater in geologically hazardous areas.

If the Planning Commission is comfortable with the revisions, then staff will initiate the
required 35-day DLCD notice prior to the first evidentiary hearing. A motion will be
needed from the Commission to formally initiate the legislative process. That can
happen at the next regular meeting scheduled for March 9, 2020.

A full copy of the Stormwater Master Plan can be viewed on the Community
development Department webpage, under “Current Projects” at:
https ://newportoregon .gov/deptlcdd/defa ult.asp.

Attachments
Draft Stormwater Element of the Newport Comprehensive Plan, dated 2-24-20
Minutes from the March 12, 2018 Commission Work Session

Page 1 of 1

Cc: Tim Gross, City Engineer

Date: February 20, 2020

71



February 24, 2020: DRAFT Amendments to Newport Comprehensive Plan Stormwater Element/Policies

STORM DRAINAGE FACILITIES

The City of Newport (City) provides stormwater collection services for more than 10,000 people
and businesses across 43 separate drainage basins. Stormwater collected from within the City is
typically piped in developed areas and discharged into the nearest natural water body (i.e. local
streams, the bay or sloughs, etc.) In many cases, existing storm drains have been designed and
constructed with the intent to serve only specific developing areas within the City, without
consideration of future improvements that might occur upstream.

The characteristics of the City’s storm drainage system in areas north of the Yaquina Bay are
different from what exists to the south. Areas north of the bay are more steeply sloped, with
ravines and hilly areas that were excavated and filled to create level areas for development.
Within these areas the storm drain system normally was large diameter pipe conveying runoff at
the natural elevation and along the original alignment of whichever creek/stream or waterway that
was being covered. In many cases, the cover (i.e. fill) was over 25 feet deep.

As the alignment of these systems was not dictated by lot lines, or typical planning parameters,
many of these pipes currently run under existing structures. The second type of system is those
that were put in place within areas that maintained a similar topography to the natural landscape.
The storm drain systems in these areas are typically small diameter pipe networks that follow
natural grading flow paths to the nearest hillside, or ravine draining to a nearby creek or stream.

Beginning in the 1970’s, the City annexed areas south of Yaquina Bay, commonly referred to as
“South Beach.” This area extended approximately 5 miles South of Yaquina Bay, and as much as
2.5 miles inland. Significant portions of South Beach are undeveloped, with storm drainage
following whatever path the natural ground would dictate to get to Yaquina Bay, or the Pacific
Ocean. Given that this area is relatively flat, and that the natural terrain affords many areas for
water storage, (wetlands) it can be difficult to model how the storm water flows through these
undeveloped areas. The majority of the storm drain system within South Beach is comprised of
roadside ditches, culverts along HWY. 101, a piped system which outfalls east of SW 32nd St.,
and pipes which convey storm runoff under the Airport.

Detailed information on the historical, functional, and environmental factors relevant to the City’s
stormwater system can be found in the document entitled, “Stormwater Master Plan, City of
Newport, Lincoln County Oregon,” by Civil West Engineering, dated October 2016 (hereinafter,
the “Stormwater Master Plan”).

Existing Stormwater System:
The existing storm drain system within the 43 basins includes approximately 32 miles of gravity
piping in a range of sizes from 6-inches to 144-inches diameter and consisting of a variety of
materials including concrete, corrugated steel, polyvinyl chloride (PVC), high density polyethylene
(HDPE), and others. Detailed information is provided in the Stormwater Master Plan regarding the
specific amounts of the various sizes of pipe in the various basins. Systems within the basins are
typically one of three types, as listed below:

1. Large diameter pipes following the elevation and alignment of natural drainage ways with
significant fill above the pipe.

2. Small diameter pipes which drain straight to a nearby creeks, or streams.
3. Natural topography draining to creeks, and streams which are conveyed under HWY. 101 by

means of a large culvert.

The downtown area is mixture of system types 1 and 2, while much of the far north and south are
a mixture of system types 2 &3.

Page 1. City of Newport comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

72



February 24, 2020: DRAFT Amendments to Newport Comprehensive Plan Stormwater Element/Policies

Study Area

1j1j:

Page 2. City of Newport Comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

73



February 24, 2020: DRAFT Amendments to Newport Comprehensive Plan Stormwater Element/Policies

Planning Period:
The timeframe for preparation of this Master Plan was 2013/2014, but due to numerous updates
and review periods, the final Master Plan is dated October 2016. The planning period for this
Storm Water Master Plan is 20 years. The period must be short enough for current users to benefit
from system improvements, yet long enough to provide reserve capacity for future growth and
increased demand. Existing residents should not pay an unfair portion for improvements sized
for future growth, yet it is not economical to build improvements that will be undersized in a
relatively short period of time. Thus, it is appropriate to calculate the storm water flow increase
caused by development over the next 20 years, which is a typical planning period for storm water
master plans. The end of the planning period is the year 2035.

Identification of Deficiencies and Development of Improvement Alternatives:
All of the existing storm drain system components were analyzed for deficiencies that exist
presently. Facilities also have been evaluated for deficiencies that are expected to occur within
the 20-year planning period. Deficiencies were identified related to the age of infrastructure,
anticipated development, and capacity.

As part of this planning effort, calculations were made to estimate the peak stormwater flows that
could be expected from each basin under existing and future development conditions. Runoff
calculations for the various storm drainage basins were performed using a method developed by
the Soil Conservation Service (SCS) now called the National Resources Conservation Service
(NRCS) for relating rainfall to runoff. The method is described in length in Technical Release 20
(TR-20) published by the SCS. The TR-20 method is based upon unit hydrograph theory and the
runoff curve number method of calculating direct runoff from the rainfall occurring over specified
areas. It considers an entire watershed with a variety of land uses and soil types. The TR-20
method also allows watershed areas (basins) to be divided into sub-basins for analysis purposes,
with drainage routes of one or more sub-basins running through other sub-basins downstream.
This provides for the calculation of an overall peak discharge from a basin that may or may not
equal the sum of the peak discharges from the individual sub-basins.

Recommended Stormwater Projects:
The table on the next page identifies a number of projects to address deficiencies within the storm
drainage system over the next 20-years. Individual projects are grouped into three priority
classifications. Each classification group is loosely defined as follows:

Group A: These are the highest priority projects that should be undertaken as soon as adequate
funding is available. These projects should be undertaken within the next 5 years.

Group B: These projects, while not of the highest priority, should be on the City’s capital
improvement planning window beyond the 5-year horizon. As Group A projects are completed,
Group B projects should be moved to Group A status. System degradation or failures, project
coordination, or other occurrence may require the movement of Group B projects to Group A
status ahead of schedule. New projects that are developed that are not critical, should be grouped
in Group B until funding is available.

Group C: Group C projects are either of low priority or are dependent on development, If
development in an area necessitates the implementation of a Group C improvement, the project
should be moved to Group A. Some projects may remain in Group C indefinitely if the need for
the project or the development requiring it never arises.

Page 3. city of Newport comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

74



February 24, 2020: DRAFT Amendments to Newport Comprehensive Plan Stormwater Element/Policies

Project
Nuidr

xi
X2

X3

U4

U2

T2

T4

ALl

Ni

Qi
T6

T5

U5

Ci

AA1

AF1

Fl

T3

U3

U6

AJ1

U’

RI

vi
AG1

xi
Hi

N2

Ti

AC1
AG2

Project DescrlpUor

145G of 12, and 18” SD pipe along SW 9th St.

571’ of 1$, and 24” pipe along SW 10th St.

1663’ of 12”, 24”, 30”, and 36” SD pipe along SW Mhmie St.

Re-alingment of Pipe under Cash and Cany
73 of 54” SD pipe along NW 3RD Street & NW Coast St.
921’ of 36” SDpipe along NW CastSt.

Re-alignment of Pipe under Sunwest Honda!Mazda building
17(Y of 36” SD pipe crossing Hwy. 101 (Jack and Bore)

1200’ of 12”, 24”, 30’, and 35” SD Pipe along Hwy. 101
89tY of 12”, 18” , and 24” SD pipe along NW Nyc St.
Re-alignment of Pipe under Ciuirch ofthe Nazarine building

Re-alignment of Pipe under Ford Dealership building
Re-alignment of Pipe under local residence

525’ of 24” along 1€ 73rd St.

675’ of 18”, and 24” SD pipe along SE Avery St.

1515’ of 12”, 18”, and 24” pipe along SW 29th and SW Brant St.

124’ of 30” SDpipe North ofNW 60th St.

665’ of 12”, 18”, and 24” SD pipe along NW Spring St.

1699 of 18’, and 24” pipe along SW Cliff Street

553’ of 12”, and 18” SD pipe along SW 2nd St.

55’ of culvert crossing SE 35th St.

753’ of 18”, and 24” SD pipe along NEDouglas Street

675’ of 12”, and 18’ SD pipe along NW Spring St.

497 of 12” SD pipe along SW 13th St.

533’ of 18” and 24” SD pipe along SW F all St.
Drainage ditch development and Rehabilitation

27(Y of 12” & 18” SDpipe along NELucky Gap St.

305’ of 12” and 1$” SDpipe along NW 54th St.

24 of 18” SD pipe along NEIler St.

161’ of 12” SDpipe along NW Nyc St.

655’ of Oilverts crossing Yaquina Bay Blvd.
1551’ of 15”, 12”, and 24’ SD pipe along SW 35th St.

knlroement ConUons
T(al Pr*t

Lnder frutuN
Cost

Structure.s Develop.
$526,162

$213,816

$793,155

$2,710,875

$612,539

$490,012

$1,109,013

$102,117

$553,428

$291,848

$598,801

$271,188

$79,355

x $229,316

$212,022

x $640,902

x $67,392

$264,614

$664,079

$169,797

$37,156

$304,978

$227,522

$163,653

$308,322

x $1,693,568

$102,214

$103,677

$86,500

$50,766

x $208,698
X $459,802

$14347,295

Project Prioritization:

When considering stormwater conveyance projects, priority should be given to the
following:

1. Areas where there is an identified lack of capacity within the system to handle flows
attributed to existing and future conditions.

2. Components of the storm drainage system run-off (controlled or otherwise) has
repeatedly caused problems for the City and for residents.

3. Opportunities to relocate public storm drainage components from underneath existing
structures.

4. Age related deficiencies that could result in structural failure of piping sections.

5. The extent to which a project aligns with available funding.

6. Coordination with other planned improvements (water, sewer, streets, etc.).

Prect
Raliuig

7
B

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

C 29

30

31

32

x

x

x
x
x

x

x
x
x
x
x
x

x
x
x

x
x
x

x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

Total

Page 4. City of Newport Comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

75



February 24, 2020: DRAFT Amendments to Newport Comprehensive Plan Stormwater Element/Policies

Although all of these factors were taken into account when formulating the priority of
projects, three carried the most weight in the development of priorities. These three
dominant influences were listed as 1 through 3, and were weighed so heavily because
flooding and large pipe failures under structures will have the largest impact on public
safety and welfare.

Financing:

There are a number of potential sources of funding. The City has a monthly ‘Stormwater
Utility’ fee that is designated to pay for stormwater services, including the operation,
maintenance, repair, necessary replacement, and improvement of the system. That fee
is based upon the amount of impervious surface on a given property. Federal, state and
local gas taxes can also be used to improve stormwater facilities when such wok is in
conjunction with street projects. The current fees do not have the capacity to pay for all of
the capital improvements outlined above.

Additionally, grant and non-grant sources of funding are potentially available, including
but not limited to FEMA Pre-Disaster Mitigation Program, FEMA Flood Mitigation
Assistance Program, Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund, general obligation
bonds, revenue bonds, and system development charges (SDCs). Although grant
programs exist, there is no way to guarantee that grant funding will be available to fund
needed projects. Revenue bonds supported by user fees and complimented by SDCs
are a more reliable means of programming needed funding over a series of years.

Page 5. City of Newport Comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

76



(Note: Recommended changes to existing comprehensive plan policies are shown in red, with new language being depicted
in underline and deleted language in strikethrough.

GOALS AND POLICIES
PUBLIC FACILITIES ELEMENT

Storm Water Drainage

Goal: To provide a storm water drainage system with sufficient capacity to meet
the present and future needs of the Newport urbanizable area.

Policy 1: The city will comply with state and federal laws concerning water quality.

Policy 2: The city will use existing, natural drainage systems to the greatest extent possible.

Goal 1: Provide a storm water drainage system with sufficient capacity to meet the present
and future needs of the Newport urbanizable area.

Policy 1: Assess the condition of the City’s stormwater drainage system and
identify needed capacity improvements for a 20-year planning period through
periodic updates to the City’s Stormwater Master Plan.

Policy 2: Maintain and implement a Capital Improvement Plan to address
deficiencies in the storm drainage system.

Policy 3: Address deficiencies in storm drainage conveyance system when
reconstructing existing streets.

Policy 4: Require that new development projects manage storm run-off from new
impervious surfaces to minimize impacts to the downstream drainage system.

Policy 5: Provide that storm run-oft attributed to new development in geologically
hazardous areas is evaluated by qualified professionals to minimize impacts to the
subject, or nearby properties.

Policy 6: Pursue a range of options for financing priority storm drainage
improvement projects, including (a) revenue bonds that leverage utility fees; (b)
general obligation bonds; (c) clean water state revolving loan funds; (U) FEMA
hazard and flood mitigation grants (e) urban renewal funds; and (f) system
development charges.

Goal 2: Develop a stormwater regulatory framework that emulates DEQ Phase II
permitting standards, so that the City is positioned to comply with such requirements when
required.

Policy 1: Amend the City’s ordinances to require drainage analysis for development
with new impervious surfaces that demonstrates run-off can be managed on-site,
or that the downstream conveyance system has capacity for the volume and
velocity of stormwater attributed to a 25-year, 24-hr storm event.

Page 6. City of Newport Comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

77



February 24, 2020: DRAFT Amendments to Newport Comprehensive Plan Stormwater Element/Policies

Policy 2: Develop boilerplate storm drainage management options for small scale
development projects to alleviate the need for site specific hydraulic analysis.

Policy 3: Adopt pre and post development erosion control requirements.

Policy 4: Encourage the use of pervious surlaces as a method of managing storm
run-off, such as porous pavement/concrete. porous payers, retention/detention
facilities, and infiltration trenches.

Policy 5: Establish a set of “good housekeeping” policies for City property and
facilities that limit pesticide, herbicide, and fertilizer use.

Goal 3: Collaborate with local and regional partners to establish water guah standards
that meet State and Federal requirements.

Policy 1: Support efforts to develop a mid-coast Total Daily Maximum Load
(TMDL) Implementation Plan.

Policy 2: Coordinate with stakeholder groups to detect and eliminate illicit
discharges into drainage ways, Yaquina Bay, and the Pacific Ocean.

Page 7. City of Newport Comprehensive Plan: Stormwater Facilities.

78



MINUTES
City of Newport Planning Commission

Work Session
Newport City Hall Conference Room A

March 12, 201$
6OOp.m.

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present: Karmen Vanderbeck & Dustm Capri.

:1
Planning Commissioners Present: Jim Pathck, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Rod Croteau, and Jim Hanselman.

Planning Commissioners Absent: Bill Branigan, and Mike Franklin (excused)

City Staff Present: Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos; and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau.

Call to Order. Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. Unfinished Business. No unfinished business.

3. New Business.

A. Review Draft Amendments to the Storm Drainage Element of the Newport Comprehensive Plan. Tokos reviewed
the prioritizing ofPhase 3 projects and how the draft amendments were laid out. Berman noted that on Page three there
was a paragraph return where it shouldn’t be. Tokos would correct this. Berman also noted that on Page five the
prioritization should have consistent bullets and questions that were appropriate. Tokos would correct this as well.

Hanselman said the prioritization section didn’t appear to have areas without stormwater control and didn’t see them in
the Master Plan report. He wondered if they did this based purely on outfalls known and located. He didn’t think there
was any stormwater control on the west side so many properties had to deal with runoff from neighboring properties
and all other surfaces. He thought any area that didn’t have stormwater facilitates needed to be a part of the project.
Berman thought the erosion potential at that location was huge. Hanselman thought neighborhoods without any
stormwater control needed to be listed as a significant priority. He said because pump stations had problems and when
they couldn’t handle excess water, they flood out to the beach and onto people’s properties. He didn’t like that these
areas were being overlooked. Tokos said he would talk to Tim Gross about it. He thought some of it would be picked
up on the Transportation System Plan but didn’t know if it would be a full analysis. Tokos said what they could do was
identify where targeted additional improvements were needed. Hanselman described the areas that needed
improvements. Patrick said the City needed to deal with ODOT not taking responsibility on runoff from the highway.
A discussion ensued regarding areas that needed improvements. Tokos said we could put in a policy recommendation
for some additional analysis to be done in the area. Capri asked who paid for these things. Tokos said the analysis would
come out of Stormwater, and the construction costs would depend on the nature of the improvements. He said that the
Agate Beach construction had some Urban Renewal funds potentially available and that analysis would come out of
utility fees for storm drainage. Hanselman wanted see the lack of some the areas being covered added to the report.

Berman said the criteria didn’t include projects to create infrastructure where there was none at that time. Tokos said
there was a lacking of capacity in the system. He said there was limited infrastructure, not no infrastructure, and it was
more on the rural scale. Patrick said there needed to be a line in the report about onsite water disposal about where the
City allowed and didn’t allowed it. He was worried about projects being placed in areas that would create slides and
thought it needed a mechanism. Patrick asked if they had identified most of the blocks yet. Tokos said under Goal 1
they could add a policy to recognize geo-technical limitations. Croteau asked if the DOGAMI maps were helpful in this
regard. Tokos felt they were more generalized. Hardy said it was easy to research. Patrick said they could defme areas.
Tokos said there was limited information the further you were from the coast line. Berman asked if DOGAMI had done
LIDAR. Tokos said they had and there was some terrain modeling that showed where there was ancient landslides. He
said just because they had the information on ancient landslides, they would still need to do additional analysis of the
area.

Tokos covered Goal 1 for Stormwater Drainage. Capri asked what happened when a project went over budget when
building a street. Tokos said you wouldn’t be able to not do it and would have time to assess when digging into the
street. He said an existing deficient storm system would be factored into the budget. Patrick said Policy 4 should say
“and to the underlying geology.” Capri thought it would be interesting to have an option for a geologist to sign off on
stormwater mitigation, but he didn’t think any of them would do it. Tokos thought the policy was spot on but needed to

I Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 3/12/18.

79



be cognizant of approving and adding new development. He said this would be done by the developer and something
to tliinlc about. Capri said he wasn’t opposed to Policy 4. Tokos said to be clear it wouldn’t be a geologist who would
be doing the analysis, it would be a civil engineer. Berman noted that he didn’t like the way the policies were listed on
the report and thought revenue bonds should be put at the bottom.

Tokos covered Goal 2. Hanselman asked if the framework was hit at a population size. Tokos said the threshold was
closer to the Corvallis size of 50,000. Berman noted that the comma close to the third line should be taken out. Tokos
noted that small scale development was not in the Master Plan. Berman asked where the options came from. Tokos said
the boilerplate was a lot ofcommon options that came from what differentjurisdictions were using. Capri thought there
should be an option to waive the standards to hire an expert to prove what the site required. Tokos said they should
always have the option. He said the City wasn’t experts in geological permits but the they could make sure that the
project was proceeding according to the recommendations of the geologist or drainage analysis. Capn was concerned
about having to stick to boilerplates. Tokos said it was more of an option rather than a mandate. He did say the 25 year
was a mandate with a threshold. Berman suggested adding the word “optional” after “development” in Policy 2. Tokos
said he would clarify that it would be optional.

Croteau said at some point they would have to determine what small scale was. Capri asked if it was square footage.
Tokos said it was tricky. He said they were talking about development areas which meant they were talking about
redevelopment. He said the City had a reasonably good handle on the conditions of the conveyance system. He said
they would be tying into it and working on improving the condition of the system. Capri asked if this was what Tim
Gross was already doing. Tokos said when Gross was making a decision, it was about adding a significant amount of
impervious surface. He didn’t know if a city with small incremental development would do much of anything to by to
stay on top of incremental additions to the overall impervious surface and drainage. Capri said he thought that water
and sewer bills didn’t pay for infrastructure improvements. Tokos said the storm drainage infrastructure fee was intended
to help the City chip away at the existing deficiency but didn’t have the resources to pay for it all. He said the remainder
would be paid for by revenue bonds.

Tokos reviewed Goal 2, Policy 3. Capri asked for an example. Tokos said it was things like silk fences, bio bags, and
erosion control blankets. Tokos reviewed Policy 4 and impervious surfaces. Hanselman asked if they were including
parking lots, Tokos said pervious payment or concrete could be done for a parking lot that was used on a continuous
basis. The challenge was that it was a different mix and they would end up using different materials to patch. Patrick
asked if Nye Beach was perilous. Tokos said the payers weren’t pervious. Berman asked if it was appropriate to have
examples in the policy. Tokos said it wasn’t uncommon to call them out. He said he would add “or similar measures”
to the policy. Tokos reminded the PC that they could use, up to a point, the road to hold water.

Tokos reviewed Policy 5. Bennan asked why it was limited to City properties. Tokos said the City had control over
these properties and could readily ensure that they’re followed. Hanselman asked if it covered schools because he didn’t
like the idea of pesticides near children. Tokos said the City would discourage this but there were areas they would still
use it. 1-lanselinan assumed City staff would be trained to apply pesticides. Capn asked if rainwater catchment was a
possibility for irrigation. Tokos said it could be used to irrigate but it couldn’t be run back into the house and flushed
back into the public system.

Tokos reviewed Goal 3 Policies next. He asked the PC if there was anything missing or anything they wanted added.
None were heard. He said he planned to bring the plan back to the PC on the March 26th meeting.

B. Discuss Draft Major Amendment 13 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. Tokos reviewed his presentation on
Draft Major Amendment 13 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. He explained the process and noted that the City
talked to the County to engage them. Tokos said the date was extended to 2025 to complete the final round of projects.
Berman questioned how it would work if a new project could be initiated in 2025 but the district had to close in 2027.
Tokos said it meant there would be an agreement that would shift the funding from the project back to the City as an
intergovernmental agreement. Berman asked what would happen if there was money left over. Tokos said it would be
kicked back to the taxing districts. Croteau asked for the fmal date. Tokos said the last borrowing would be in 2019-
2020 and debt retirement would accelerate over in the last few years. Berman asked what was the big contributors to
the two million. Tokos said South Shore, the Rogue Brewery, and anything since the 1980’s. He explained that real
properties were taxed and Government properties weren’t. Tokos noted that the Wilder development was outside of the
Urban Renewal area.

Tokos asked for the PC’s thoughts on prioritizing Phase 3 projects. He covered the priorities. Croteau asked for the
location on the redundant bay under-crossing pipeline. Tokos explained where the location was. He noted that new
projects couldn’t be added to the plan. Berman asked if the intent was to get everything done by 2027. Tokos said no,
the high priority projects were what they wanted to complete. Croteau asked if the 35th Street sidewalks were inevitable,

2 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 3/12118.

80



4’

was it something the City could begin on now to prevent future encroachment in the area. Tokos said the City wanted
to give people a heads up and it was most of the development on the north side. Capn asked about the easements noted
on page 41. Tokos said if it was needed it would be a targeted easement. Vanderbeck asked about outside funding
options. Tokos said there would be funding for 40th Street and Highway 101 because there would be commercial partners
to help fund it. He noted that the redundant bay under-crossing pipeline might have Federal dollars for resiliency there.

C. Updated Tentative Planning Commission Work Program. Tokos reviewed the updated work schedule with the PC.
Patrick asked to add a discussion on height adjustments to get some rules in place. Tokos said if the PC didn’t lilce the
current rules they could change them, say they couldn’t be done, or change them to variances to show hardships. Hardy
thought there should be some rational parameters that were clearly stated and accurate. She didn’t think simplistic
defrnitions were sufficient. Tokos reiterated that they could be changed and said he didn’t know that the standards were
problematic. Patrick said standards had worked for setbacks, but not for height. He wanted to know why there were
height restrictions. Tokos said heights had to do with fire and safety for commercial structures. Hardy thought the way
that heights were measured needed clarification. Tokos said there could be a conversation on this. He said to keep in
mind that when dealing with height the existing residential neighborhoods had fixed development patterns. Tokos said
when changing the height definition, it would apply across the board and to keep in mind the existing development
pattern when doing it. A discussion ensued regarding the history of height adjustments in the City. Patrick wanted some
rationale presented to the PC to base things on. Croteau asked to see how other jurisdictions did their calculations. Tokos
said he would add this to the work program.

Tokos reminded the PC that they would be having a discussion on the Nye Beach Design Review later in the year. He
said they weren’t addressing it at this time so it didn’t get convoluted with the Vacation Rental process.

4. Director’s Comments. No Director comments.

5. Adjournment. Having no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Executive Assistant

3 Planning Commission Work Session Minutes 3!IZ’t8.

81


	Planning Commission Work Session Agenda
	2018-2297 - Memorandum
	2018-2297 - Draft Amendments to Natural Features Section of the Comprehensive Plan
	2018-2297 - Draft Amendments Establishing a Tsunami Hazard Overlay - NMC Chpt 14.46
	2018-2297 - Minutes from the 08-26-19 PC Work Session
	2018-2297 - Res. No. 3725 & Earthquake Maps
	2018-2297 - Draft Maps Illustrating DOGAMI’s Tsunami Inundation Areas-TIM Maps
	2018-2297 - Uses Classified as High Hazard-Group H in the 2019 Oregon Structural Specialty Code
	2018-2297 - HB 4119A Staff Measure Summary & Draft Legislation
	2018-2297 - Chapter 3 - DLCD Publication
	2018-2298 - Memorandum
	2018-2298 - Draft Stormwater Element of the Newport Comp Plan 02-24-20
	2018-2298 - 03-12-18 PC Work Session Minutes

